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To, Date-05.09.2024
The Secretary,

Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited,

Building A, Unit 2054, 2"nd Floor,

Piramal Agastya Corporate Park,

L.B.S Road, Kurla, West, Mumbai - 400070

Ref: Symbol: JOTINDRA

Subject: Regulation 34 (1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 - Notice of the 54t Annual General Meeting (AGM) along with Annual
Report for the Financial Year 2023-24 and Book Closure pursuant to Regulation 42 of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended (‘Listing Regulations”) and Cut- off Date/E-voting.

Respected Sir/ Madam,

1 Convening of the 54™ AGM of the Company and approval of the Notice of AGM
and the Annual Report for the Financial Year 2023-2024:

This is to inform that the Fifty-four (54%) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company
is scheduled to be held on Saturday the 28 of September, 2024 at 12:30 P.M. at registered
office of the company situated at 14/3, Mathura Road, Faridabad, Haryana, 121003 IN

In terms of the requirement of Regulation 34(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we are submitting herewith the Annual
Reportofthe Company including the Notice of AGM for the Financial Year 2023-24. The
Company has sent the same through electronic mode to the Members who have
registered their E-mail IDs with the Company’s RTA/Depository Participant.

The Notice of AGM along with the Annual Report for the Financial Year 2023-24 is also
available on the website of the Company viz. https://jotindra.com/ Further, the Notice
of AGM is also available on the website of National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)
at evoting@nsdl.co.in

2. Fixation of dates for Closure of Share Transfer Books and Register of Members:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 10 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 42 (2) of

~ SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended,
the Register of Members and Share Transfer Books shall be closed from 22.09.2024 to
28.09.2024 (both days inclusive) on account of the AGM.

3. Fixing Cut-off Date/E-voting:
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as may be amended,
Board of Directors of the Company has fixed 21st September, 2024, as the-eut-off date to
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record the entitlement of the shareholders to cast their votes electronically (Remote e-
voting) during the voting period and during the 54th AGM of the Company to be held on
Saturday, the 28t September, 2024 at 12:30 p.m.

You are requested to kindly take the above information on record
Thanking You
Yours faithfully,

For JOTINDRA INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

(Formerly Known as JOTINDBASTEEL AND TUBES LIMITED)
S 2~

Development of Group Housing, Plotted Colonies, Commercial Shops Established ; 1970
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For JOTINDRA INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
(Formerly Known as JOTINDRA STEEL AND TUBES LIMITED)
(CIN: L27104HR1970PLC005240)

54™ ANNUAL REPORT
(2023-24)
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COMPANY INFORMATION  *%70054"

KEY TEAM Auditors/ RTA

— AKHIL KUMAR SUREKA — STATUTORY AUDITOR

(MANAGING DIRECTOR) M/SHUMS & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

— SHIKHA MALHOTRA

(EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR) 2C4, DREAMLAND HOUSE, 1/18B

— TANVIDUBEY ASAF ALI ROAD, DELHI- 110002.

(INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR)
— SECRETARIAL AUDITOR
CS SANMEET KAUR.

— VINAYAK SUREKA C-152,3RD FLOOR, MAHENDRU ENCLAVE

(INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR)
NEAR MODEL TOWN ,DELHI,110009

— COST AUDITOR
— SATVINDER ARORA M/S NISHA VATS & CO.,

(INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR) COST ACCOUNTANTS
F-100, LAXMI PARK, NANGLOI,

DELHI-110041
— NIMANSHU SINGH

(COMPANY SECRETARY) — REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENT
M/S.BEETAL FINANCIAL & COMPUTER
SERVICES (P) LTD.,,

— SATISH GUPTA BEETAL HOUSE,99, MADANGIR, BEHIND

LOCAL SHOPPING CENTRE, NEAR DADA
HARSUKH DASS MANDIR, NEW DELHI -
110062

(CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER)

REGISTERED OFFICE- 14/3, MATHURA ROAD, FARIDABAD-121003 (HARYANA)

LISTED AT- METROPOLITAN STOCK EXCHANGE OF INDIA LIMITED (MSEI)

54T ANNUAL REPORT



sarvome .

OUR
STRATEGY

We remain committed to our strategy of achieving a high return and delivering valued
products to our consumer and securing a good image in consumer’s mindset.

We are confident in our ability to leverage the maximum value through our focus on five
strategic pillars.

OUR STRATEGIC PILLARS

Quality obsession and Customer first
Individual contribution to creating a winning culture

Profitable growth through strong Asset Management

&
*
& Disruptive Growth
*
&

Operational Excellence
OPERATIONAL STRATEGY

& Operational enablers to drive market share acceleration

# Increasing the speed of execution

& Margin expansion via strong asset management

« Adopting initiatives to constantly upgrade internal process and capabilities
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ENGAGING WITH OUR

STAKEHOLDERS

o
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EMPLOYEES

An employee is a business professional who performs specific duties based on the job role.
Their wellbeing, productivity and prosperity translate to our growth and profitability.

WORKERS
Workers are the backbone of the construction industry. They are responsible for performing
various tasks on construction sites, ranging from manual labor to operating heavy machinery.

CUSTOMERS
Our customers are the final users of our products. Their satisfaction, wellbeing and delight is
critical.

INVESTORS

Our valued investors provide us with the necessary capital to achieve our growth aspirations along

with that they provide us with moral support to push forward, build on our progress, and achieve our
goals.
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JOINT VENTURE PARTNERS

Our partnering agencies are essential to support critical areas of our business including land
sourcing and the development value chain.

o .

GOVERNMENT BODIES AND REGULATORY AGENCIES

Government bodies and regulatory agencies are key to our undeterred operations through
compliance and sectoral policy-related matters.

| — .I..l. L:
- e - ;-. ﬂ' L PR -
O T S L
SUPPLIERS

Our vendors and suppliers form the backbone of our supply chain and help us build homes to
create joy.

CONTRACTORS

Similar to our suppliers, contractors provide us with steady flow of workers and expertise to
ensure work progress.

54T ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Fifty-four (54%) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company is
scheduled to be held on Saturday the 28t of September, 2024 at 12:30 P.M. at registered office of the
company situated at 14/3, Mathura Road, Faridabad, Haryana, 121003 IN, to transact the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Stand-alone and Consolidated Audited Financial Statements of
the Company for the year ended on 315T March, 2024 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon, and for that purpose to consider and pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

(a) “RESOLVED THAT the Stand-alone Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
on 31st March, 2024 and the Reports of the Auditors and the Board of Directors thereon laid before
this meeting be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

(b) “RESOLVED THAT the Consolidated Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
on 31st March, 2024 and the Reports of the Auditors and the Board of Directors thereon laid before
this meeting be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. AKHIL KUMAR SUREKA (DIN-00060206), who retires by
rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for reappointment and for that purpose to consider and
pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-.

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. AKHIL KUMAR SUREKA (DIN-00060206), a Director of the Company, retiring
by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, who offers Himself for re-appointment,
pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, be and is hereby re-appointed
as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. To approve entering into Transactions with Related Parties and in this regard to consider and if
thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution.

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing
Regulations”), the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made
thereunder and other applicable provisions, if any, [including any statutory modification(s) or
amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force], the Company’s
Policy on Materiality of and Dealing with Related Party Transactions, and subject to such
approval(s), consent(s), permission(s) as may be necessary from time to time and based on the
approval/ recommendation of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company,
approval of the Members be accorded to the Company to enter into/ continue with the existing
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Related Party Transaction(s)/ Contract(s)/ Arrangement(s)/ Agreement(s) (whether by way of
an individual transaction or transactions taken together or series of transactions or otherwise)
falling within the definition of ‘Related Party Transaction’ under Regulation 2(1)(zc) of the Listing
Regulations read with the definition of ‘Related Party’ under Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the Listing
Regulations in the course of: i) Sale and purchase of any goods and material; ii) Availing /
rendering of any services; iii) Sharing or usage of each other’s resources and reimbursement of
expenses, licensing of technology and intellectual property rights, receipt of royalty / brand usage;
iv) Purchase / sale / transfer / exchange / lease of business assets including property, plant and
equipment, Intangible assets, transfer of technology to meet the business objectives and
requirements; v) Providing fund based and non-fund based support including equity / debt /
Inter-corporate deposits (ICD), convertible / non-convertible instruments / Guarantee/ security
etc., in connection with loans provided and Interest, commission and other related income /
expenses.vi) Any transfer of resources, services or obligations to meet its objectives /
requirements; with Related Parties as detailed in the explanatory statement to this Resolution, on
such material terms and conditions as mentioned therein and as may be mutually agreed between
the parties and the Company, for the financial year FY 2024-25, provided that the said contract(s)/
arrangement(s)/ agreement(s)/ transaction(s) shall be carried out in the ordinary course of
business of the Company and at arm’s length basis.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including any Committee
thereof) be authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may deem fit at its
absolute discretion and to take all such steps as may be required in this connection including
finalising and executing necessary contract(s), scheme(s), agreement(s) and such other
documents as may be required, seeking all necessary approvals to give effect to this Resolution,
for and on behalf of the Company and settling all such issues, questions, difficulties or doubts
whatsoever that may arise and to take all such decisions with regard to the powers herein
conferred to, without being required to seek further consent or approval of the Members or
otherwise to the end and intent that the Members shall be deemed to have given their approval
thereto expressly by the authority of this Resolution.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT all actions taken by the Board of Directors of the Company (including
any Committee thereof) in connection with any matter referred to or contemplated in this
Resolution, be approved, ratified and confirmed in all respects.”

To Ratify the appointment and remuneration of Cost Auditor of the Company and in this regard to
consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provision of Section 148 of Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 14 of Companies (Audit and Auditor) rules, 2014 and other applicable provision made there
under including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force,
M/s Nisha Vats &Co the Cost Auditors appointed by the board of directors of the company as Cost
Auditor to conduct the audit of cost records of the company for the financial year ended 31st
March, 2025 be paid the remuneration amounting to Rupees 30,500.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any director of the company be and is hereby authorized to do all such
acts and things as may be necessary for the time being in force.”

By Order of the Board of Director

Sd/-

Mr. Nimanshu Singh
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

DATE: 04.09.2024
PLACE: Faridabad

Notes:

a.

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Secretarial
Standard - 2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India for special
business under Item No.1 of the Notice is annexed hereto.

AMEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (HEREIN AFTER
REFERRED AS“THE MEETING”/”AGM”) IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE
ON POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF. SUCH A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY.

A blank form of proxy is enclosed herewith and if intended to be used, it should be deposited duly
filled-up at the registered office of the Company not less than forty-eight hours before the
commencement of the Meeting. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty
and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the company
carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act
as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies,
societies etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable.

Only registered members of the Company holding shares as on the Cut-off date decided for the
purpose, being 215t September,2024 or any proxy appointed by such registered member may attend
and vote at the Annual General Meeting as provided under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Additional information, pursuant to Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations, in respect of directors
seeking appointment/re-appointment at the AGM, forms part of the Notice.

In terms of section 101 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with the rules & Circulars made
thereunder as updated from time to time, the Company forwarded soft copies of all the documents
to be sent to the shareholders including the General Meeting notices along with Audited Accounts
and requisite reports thereon to all those members who have registered their e-mail ids with their
respective DPs or with the Share Transfer Agent of the Company. Please note that these documents
are also available on the Company’s Website at https://jotindra.com/ . All the members are requested
to ensure to keep their e-mail addresses updated with the Depository Participants or by writing to
the Company at jotindrasteelandtubes@gmail.com quoting their folio number(s) or their DP/
CLIENT IDs.
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All the documents referred to in the notice will be available for inspection at the Company"s
registered office during normal business hours on all working days upto the date of AGM. The
Register of Directors and Key managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under
section 170 of the Companies Act 2013 (Act), and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which
directors are interested, maintained under section 189 of the Act, will be available for inspection by
the members at the AGM.

The Register of members and share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from 22NP
September, 2024 to 28t September, 2024 (both days inclusive).

Members seeking any information/ clarification with regard to the accounts or any matter to be
dealt at the AGM, are requested to write at jotindrasteelandtubes@gmail.com on or before 22NP
September, 2024

(A) Members holding shares in physical mode are:

i) Required to submit/ update their Bank Account details, E-mail ID and PAN to the Company/
RTA;

ii) requested to opt for the Electronic Clearing System (ECS) mode for instant and secured
receipt of dividend in future;

iii) advised to make nomination in respect of their shareholding in Form SH13;

iv) requested to send their share certificates to RTA for consolidation, in case shares are held
under two or more folios;

V) informed that the transfer of shares in physical form is restricted and therefore it is advised

to convert their holdings into dematerialized form.

(B) Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to submit their address, Bank
Account Details, E-mail id and PAN to respective DPs with whom they are maintaining their demat
accounts including the change, if any, as mandated by SEBI and advised to contact their respective
DPs for availing the nomination facility.

E-Voting:

1. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
thereunder and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, a member of the Company holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form may exercise his right to vote by electronic means in respect of the
resolution(s) contained in this notice.

2. The Company is providing facility for voting by electronic means to its members to enable them
to cast their votes through such voting. The Company has engaged the services of National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) to provide remote e-voting facility (i.e. the facility of
casting votes by a member by using an electronic voting system from a place other than the
venue of a general meeting).

3. The Company shall also provide facility for voting through Ballot/polling paper which shall be
available at the meeting and members attending the meeting who have not already casted their
vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right to vote at the meeting.

4. The members who have exercised their vote by remote e-voting prior to the meeting may also
attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.
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5. The Board of Directors have appointed Mr. Satish Kumar (Practising Advocate) as the
Scrutinizer, for conducting the voting poll and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent
manner.

6. The cut-off date for the purpose of voting (including remote e-voting) in the meeting is 21st
September, 2024.

7. Members are requested to carefully read the instructions for remote e-voting before casting
their vote.

8. The remote e-voting facility will be available during the following period after which the portal

shall forthwith be blocked and shall not be available:

Commencement of E-Voting facility 25thseptember, 2024

End of E-Voting facility 27thseptember, 2024

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on 25t september , 2024 at 10:00 A.M. and ends on 27t september,
2024 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The
Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-
off date) i.e. 215t September, 2024, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall
be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date,
being 215t September, 2024.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned
below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system
A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat

account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update
their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method
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Individual  Shareholders
holding securities in demat
mode with NSDL.

Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz.
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a

mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section
, this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password.
After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting
services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting”
under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page.
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and
you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period If you are not registered for
IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS
Portal” or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing
the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a
Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting

system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You
will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat
account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period.

Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App
“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below
for seamless voting experience.

NSDL Mobile App is available on

.." AppStore B Google Play
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Individual  Shareholders
holding securities in demat
mode with CDSL

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login

through their existing user id and password. Option will be made
available to reach e-Voting page without any further
authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to
visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon &
New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi
username & password.

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the
e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in
progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking
the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the
e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also links provided to access
the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can
visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is
available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login &

New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting
link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email
as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication,
user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in

progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting
Service Providers.



mailto:jotindra@jotindra.com
http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/

JOTINDRA INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

(Formerly Known as: Jotindra Steel & Tubes Ltd.)
CIN: L27104HR1970PLC005240
Registered Office-14/3 Mathura Road, Sector45, Faridabad 121010, (Haryana) India
Phone : +91-129-2477888 E-mail: jotindra@jotindra.com

Individual ~ Shareholders
(holding  securities in
demat mode) login
through their depository
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option.
Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository
site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature.
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will
be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period.

Development of Group Housing, Plotted Colonies, Commercial Shops Established : 1970
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B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

l.

2.

4,

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification
Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices ie. [DEAS, you can log-in at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote
electronically.

Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat |Your User ID is:
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in | 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit
demat account with NSDL. Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300***
and Client ID is 12****** then your user
ID is IN3QQ***] 2%kxkokk,

b) For Members who hold shares in | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

demat t with CDSL.
emataccountwi For example if your Beneficiary ID is

1 2¥xiepicioricikx then your user ID is
12**************

c¢) For Members holding shares in | EVEN Number followed by Folio Number
Physical Form. registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001***
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is
101456001 ***

5.

Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:
a) Ifyou are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and
cast your vote.
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b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial
password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need
to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

¢) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

() If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial
password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open
the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account,
last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form.
The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for
those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your
password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with
NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name
and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-
Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID

and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login
through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 022
- 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33
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Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding
shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period.
3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of
shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation
page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

Development of Group Housing, Plotted Colonies, Commercial Shops Established : 1970
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1.

General Guidelines for shareholders

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail
to satishkr1975@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e.
other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney /
Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-
Voting" tab in their login.

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to
keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful
attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User

Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to
reset the password.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-
voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call
on: 022 -4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 or send a request to to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre - Senior Manager,
National Securities Depository Limited at evoting@nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user
id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR
(self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to jotindrasteelandtubes@gmail.com

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to
(jotindrasteelandtubes@gmail.com). If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in
demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method
for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id
and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4. Interms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to
update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting
facility.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(Pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”), attached to the Notice dated 04t

September, 2024 convening the 54t Annual General Meeting)

Item No. 3
SPECIAL BUSINESS:

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’), vide its notification dated 9th November,
2021, has notified SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Sixth Amendment)
Regulations, 2021 (‘Amendments’) introducing amendments to the provisions pertaining to the
Related Party Transactions under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’). The aforesaid Amendments inter-alia included
replacing of threshold i.e. 10% (ten per cent) of the listed entity’s consolidated turnover, for
determination of Material Related Party Transactions requiring Shareholders’ prior approval
with the threshold of lower of Rs. 1,000 crores (Rupees one thousand crores) or 10% (ten per
cent) of the annual consolidated turnover of the listed entity as per the last audited financial
statements of the listed entity,.Under the Listing Regulations, in addition to the approval and
reporting for transactions by the Company with its own Related Party(ies), the scope extends
to transactions by the Company with Related Party(ies) of any subsidiary(ies) of the Company
or transactions by a subsidiary(ies) of the Company with its own Related Party(ies) or Related
Party(ies) of the Company or Related Party(ies) of any subsidiary(ies) of the Company. As per
Regulation 23(4) of the Listing Regulations, all Material Related Party Transactions shall require
prior approval of the shareholders, even if the transactions are in the ordinary course of
business and at an arm'’s length basis. Given the nature of the Company the Company works
closely with its subsidiary and group Companies to achieve its business objectives and enters
into various operational transactions with its related parties, from time to time, in the ordinary
course of business and on arm’s length basis. Further, the Members of the Company at the
previous AGM had approved Related Party Transactions of the Company with certain Related.
However, the estimated value of the contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ agreement(s)/
transaction(s) of the Company with the aforesaid Related Parties is anticipated to exceed the
aforesaid monetary limit approved by the Members at the 54t AGM. Members may please note
that the Company, its Subsidiary and Group Company have been undertaking such transactions
of similar nature with related parties in the past financial years, in the ordinary course of
business and on arm's length after obtaining requisite approvals, including from the Audit
Committee of the Company as per the requirements of the applicable law. The maximum annual
value of the proposed transactions with the related parties is estimated based on the Company’s
current transactions with them and future business projections.

The Board of Directors of your company has approved this item in the Board Meeting and
recommends the Resolution as set out in the Notice for the approval of members of the Company
as an Ordinary Resolution.

Also, it is to note that all entities falling under the related parties shall not vote to approve the
transaction as set out at Item no. 03, irrespective whether the entity is party to the said
transaction or not.

Except Promoter Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives,
no other Director or any other person is concerned or interested in the Resolution
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Item No. 4
SPECIAL BUSINESS:

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment and
remuneration of the Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for
the financial year ending March 31, 2024 as per the following details:

1- Name of the Cost Auditor-M/s Nisha Vats & Co.

2- Amount of Fee-Rs. 30500

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act, read with the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rule, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by
the shareholders of the Company.

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution set out at
Item No. 4 of the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for
the financial year ending March 31, 2025.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in any
way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item No.4 of
the Notice.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 4 for approval by the
shareholders.

By Order of the Board

For JOTINDRA INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
(Formerly Known as JOTINDRA STEEL AND TUBES LIMITED)
SD/-

(Nimanshu Singh)

Company Secretary/ Compliance Officer
Date-04.09.2024
Place- Faridabad
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PURSUANT TO REGULATI F THE SEBI (LISTI BLIGATI AND DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 AND SECRETARIAL STANDARD - 2 [SSUED BY
THEINSTITUTEOFCOMPANYSECRETARIESOFINDIA(ICS)) INFORMATIONABOUTTHEDIRECT
OR PROPOSED TO BE RE- APPOINTED/ APPOINTED UNDER IS FURNISHED AS BELOW:

Name of Directors Mr. Akhil Kumar Sureka

DIN 00060206

Date of Birth 08-10-1978

Date of First Appointment 01-07-2008

Designation Managing Director

Qualification Expertise in specific functional area
Expertise in specific functional area « Digital Skills

» Brand Building

» Retail & GTM

« Leadership

» Entrepreneurship

» Corporate Strategy & Planning

* M&A, Strategy & Investment
Management

« Global business & Consumer
Understanding

« Corporate Governance, Risk &
Compliance

Relation with other Directors Not Related to the Directors of

the Company

Listed entities in which directorship held (including
foreign Companies) Sri Narayan Rajkumar Merchants Limited

Listed entities in which membership of Committee | Jotindra Infrastructure Limited
of Board held. (Audit Committee and

SRC Committee)

Listed entities from which resigned during past Bihariji Ispat Udyog Limited
three years
Shareholding in the Company 523626 Shares



mailto:jotindra@jotindra.com

P

(Formerly Known as: Jotindra Steel & Tubes Ltd.)
CIN: L27104HR1970PLC005240
Registered Office-14/3 Mathura Road, Sector45, Faridabad 121010, (Haryana) India
Phone : +91-129-2477888 E-mail: jotindra@jotindra.com

NOTES/INSTRUCTIONS

For Members opting for e-voting

The Company is pleased to announce that it is offering remote e-voting facility as an alternate, for
Members to enable them to cast their vote electronically instead of voting at the venue of AGM
through physical ballot paper. For the procedure to be followed for remote e-voting by Members,
kindly refer to Notes of the Notice of AGM.

Last date for remote e-voting is the close of working hours (05:00 P.M.) on 27t September, 2024.

For Members opting to vote by Physical Ballot paper

A shareholder desiring to exercise his/her vote by physical ballot are required to be physically
present at the venue of the AGM and can give his/her assent or dissent in the ballot paper as
annexed hereunder. At the time of physical voting at the venue of the AGM, the ballot paper shall
be duly filled and completed and be dropped in the ballot box kept at the AGM venue. Company
has appointed a scrutinizer for confirming that the voting through physical ballot paper is being
done in a fair and transparent manner. Shareholder can send proxy as well instead of attending
the AGM personally and the proxy can vote on his/her behalf. Proxy can vote only after submitting
duly filled and signed Proxy Forms. Shareholder/Proxy are requested to bring along with them,
the attendance slip, Proxy Form (only in case Proxy attends meeting) and his/her copy of Annual
Report and Notice.

Voting rights shall be reckoned on the number of shares registered in the name of members as on
19th September, 2024.

Kindly note that the members can opt only one mode for voting i.e. either by Physical Ballot at the
venue of AGM or Remote E-Voting. If you are opting for remote e-voting, then do not vote by
Physical Ballot also and vice versa. However, in case member(s) cast their vote both by Physical
Ballot and e-voting, then voting done through e-voting shall prevail.

The results declared along with Scrutinizer’s Report, shall be placed on the Company’s Web-site
https://jotindra.com/ and on the web-site of the NSDL within two days of the passing of the
Resolutions at AGM of the Company held on 28t September, 2024 and communicated to the MSEI
where the shares of the company are listed
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To,

The Members
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Your Directors are pleased to present their 54th Annual Report on the business and operations of
the Company together with the audited statement of accounts for the financial year ended on March

31St, 2024:Further Your Directors are pleased to inform about the name change of the Company

from Jotindra steel and Tubes Limited to Jotindra Infrastructure Limited.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Financial Results for the year ended 31stMarch, 2024 are asunder:

(Amount X in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

STANDALONE

CONSOLIDATED

2023-24

2022-23

2023-24

2022-23

Revenue From Operations

741.92

15839.24

741.92

15839.24

Other Income

509.79

344.23

511.51

359.38

Total Income

1251.71

16183.47

1253.44

16198.62

Cost of materials consumed

0

0.00

0

0.00

Expenditure on Group Housing Project

722.46

12638.53

722.46

12638.53

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

16.55

1064.36

16.55

1174.61

Changes in inventories of finished goods ,raw
material and Work-in-progress

(16.55)

(1064.36)

(16.55)

(1174.61)

Employee benefits expense

2.86

23.28

2.86

23.28

Finance Cost

2.33

29.96

2.38

30.18

Depreciation and amortization expense

12.12

128.44

12.56

134.52

Manufacturing Expenses

0

1.69

0

1.69

Selling and Distribution Expenses

0.39

0.00

0.39

0.00

Administration and general expenses

412

71.19

4.75

74.40

Total Expenses

744.28

12893.07

745.39

12902.59

Profit/(loss)before exceptional items and tax

507.44

3290.39

508.04

3296.02

Exceptional Items

0

0.00

0

0.00

Profit/(loss)before tax

507.44

3290.39

507.84

3295.89

Income Tax Expenses

0.29

(799.06)

0.34

(799.65)

Profit/(loss)for the period

507.15

2491.33

507.51

2496.25

Other Comprehensive Income

(i)Items that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss, Re-measurement gain/(losses) on
defined benefit plans

0.25

12.53

0.25

12.53

(ii)Income tax relating to items that will not
be reclassified to profit or loss

(0.06)

(3.15)

(0.06)

(3.15)

Other Comprehensive Income for the year

0.18

9.37

0.18

9.37

Total Comprehensive Income for the period

507.33

2500.71

507.70

2505.62

Earnings Per Share(Basic/Diluted) (")

104.12

51.32

104.19

51.42

DIVIDEND
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No dividend is recommended for the year under review to consolidate the financial position of
the company.

TRANSITION TO INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013 read with relevant rules thereunder, with effect from April 1, 2017 and accordingly
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) (Amendments) Rules, 2016.

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up equity share capital as on 31stMarch 2024 was 487.46 Lacs. There was no public issue,
rights issue, bonus issue or preferential issue, etc. during the year under review. The Company has
not issued shares with differential voting rights, sweat equity shares, nor has it granted any stock
options.

RESERVES

During the year under review Rs 507.33 (In Lakhs) has been transferred to General Reserve in
order to consolidate the financial position of the company.

WEBSITE

The web address of the company is https://jotindra.com/index.html, where annual return
referred to insub-section (3) of section 92 has been placed.

DEPOSITS

The company has not accepted any deposits from public during the financial year under report
and as such there were no deposits outstanding as on 31st March, 2024.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

During the year under review, your Company has not directly or indirectly -

(i) given any loan to any person or other body corporate other than usual advances envisaged in
a contract for supply of materials or equipment or job work, if any;

(ii) given any guarantee or provided security in connection with a loan to any other body
corporate or person; and

(iii) acquired by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body
corporate.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A report on contracts and arrangements made during the year 2023-24, transactions being in the
ordinary course of business and at arm’s length have been reported and annexed hereto in this
report in the prescribed Form AOC-2 read with note no. 48 of the Financial Statements.

The terms & conditions of the above mentioned transactions are not prejudicial to the interest of
the Company and there is no transaction of material nature. The closing balances of such related
parties, wherever outstanding, are not overdue.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board met 11 times during the financial year 2023-24. The maximum interval between any
two meetings did not exceed 120 days. The Company adheres to the Secretarial Standards on the
Board Meetings as prescribed by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The Board has
complete access to any information within the Company. Agenda papers containing all necessary
information/documents are made available to the Board Members in advance to enable them to
discharge their responsibilities effectively and take informed decisions.

The Dates of meetings are being provided hereunder-

1.08/04/2023
2.04/05/2023
3.29/05/2023
4.14/08/2023
5.05/09/2023
6.11/10/2023
7.14/11/2023
8.28/12/2023
9.05/02/2024
10.14/02/2024
11.05/03/2024

BOARD EVALUATION

The Board of directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board
committees and individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) and the corporate governance requirements as prescribed by Securities and Exchange Board
of India (“SEBI”) under Regulation 17(10) of Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements,
Regulations, 2015. The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs
from all the directors on the basis of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure,
effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning, etc. The performance of the
committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the committee members on the
basis of the criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings,
etc.
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FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company proactively keeps its Directors informed of the activities of the Company, its
management and operations and provides an overall industry perspective as well as issues being
faced by the industry. The details of various familiarization programme provided to the Directors
of the Company is available on the Company’s website https://jotindra.com/index.html

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 5 OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

Disclosure pursuant to Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rule, 2014 has been made in the prescribed Format and forms part of the Directors’
Report as per Annexure L.

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

In terms of requirements under Schedule IV of the Companies Act 2013 and the Listing
Regulations, 2015, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 16/03/2024.

The Independent Directors at the meeting reviewed the following:-

¢ Performance of non independent Directors and board as a whole.

e Performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of executive
Directors and non-executive Directors.

e Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company
management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform
their duties.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under SEBI LODR Regulations forms part of the
Integrated Annual Report. In terms of Part E of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosures Requirements) Regulations 2015 (Listing Regulations, 2015), the Compliance
Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary certifying compliance with conditions of
Corporate Governance, as stipulated in Regulation 16 to 27 of Listing Regulations, 2015 with the
Stock Exchange(s) where the shares of the company are listed, is also enclosed.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of directors, to the best of
their knowledge and ability, confirm that:

i. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed and there are no material departures;

they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
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view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the -
profit of the Company for that period;

iii. they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv. they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

V. they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such
internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively;

Vi. they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and
maintained by the Company, work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors
and external consultants, the board is of the opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls
were adequate and effective during the financial year 2023-24.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under
Regulation 34(2) of SEBI LODR Regulations, is appended to this Report.

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL/ INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS DECLARATION

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(7) of the Act, all Independent directors have submitted
declarations that each of them meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6)
of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Regulations, 2015.During the year under review
Mr. Rannveer Singh Rishi resigned from the post of directorship on 8t April, 2023 and on same
day Mr. Satvinder Arora (DIN: 10098409) was appointed as Additional Director(Independent
Category)of the company later as per the provisions of Regulation 17 of LODR, 2015 the same was
approved by the shareholders on 18.07.2023 through postal Ballot, Further Miss Shikha Malhotra
was appointed as the Executive Director on 11.10.2023and the same was approved by the
shareholders in the EGM held on 20.01.2024, Further Mrs. Tanvi Dubey was appointed as the
Independent Director on 05.02.2024 and the same was approved by the Shareholders through
Postal Ballot.

During the year, the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or
transactions with the Company.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS

The Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration and other matters provided in
Section 178(3) of the Act are appended as Annexure-III to this report. The Policy is also available
on the website of the company at https://jotindra.com/policies.html
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COMMITTEES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The constitution of the Audit Committee is in accordance with the requirements of Section 177 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements),
2015.

As on 31-03-2024 the Audit Committee composed of following directors:

Name of the member Designation in committee

SHRI VINAYAK SUREKA Chairperson
SHRI AKHIL KUMAR SUREKA Member
SHRI SATVINDER ARORA Member

() The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as set-out in Section 177 of the Act.

(ii) The Audit Committee had Four Meetings during the financial year 2023-24 ended on
31stMarch, 2024

Details of meeting of the committee held and attendance there at is given under Corporate
Governance Report forming part of this report.

STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The constitution of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board of director is in
accordance with the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements), 2015.

As on 31st March, 2024 the Stakeholders Relationship Committee composed of following:-

Name of the member Designation in committee

SHRI SATVINDER ARORA Chairperson

SMT. TANVI DUBEY Member

SHRI AKHIL KUMAR SUREKA Member

During the year 2023-2024, Stakeholders Committee met four-times and provided grievance
status updates to the Board of directors of the company. Further details are given under Corporate
Governance Report forming part of this report.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE.
The constitution of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee is in accordance with the

requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per Regulation 19 of SEBI(Listing
Obligations and Disclosures Requirements), 2015.
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The said committee has been entrusted with the responsibility of formulating and reco.aaciui, -

to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and
other employees; formulation of criteria for evaluation of IndependentDirectors and the Board,
devising a policy on Board diversity and identifying persons who are qualified to become directors
and who may be appointed in Senior Management in accordance with the criteria laid down and
to recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.

As on 31-03-2024 the NRC consisted of following:

s.no. | Name of the member Designation in committee

SHRI SATVINDER ARORA Chairperson

SHRI VINAYAK SUREKA Member

SMT. TANVI DUBEY Member

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Your directors have established a Vigil (Whistle Blower) Mechanism and formulated a Policy in
order to provide a framework for responsible and secure whistle blowing/vigil mechanism. The
Vigil (Whistle Blower) Mechanism aims to provide a channel to the Directors and employees to
report genuine concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the
codes of conduct or ethic policy. This mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against
victimization of Directors and employees who avail of the mechanism and provide for direct access
to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases.

During the year 2023-2024, no such report were made to the Chairman of Audit Committee.
The Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy 1is available on the website at
https://jotindra.com/index.html

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted Prevention
of Sexual Harassment policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Complaints
Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All
employees are covered under this policy.

During the year 2023-2024, no complaints were received by the Company related to sexual
harassment and hence no complaint is pending as on 31-03-2024 for redressal.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN THE
END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF THE REPORT

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of your Company have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements
relate and on the date of this report.
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There are no material change and commitments affecting financial position between the end of
financial year and the date of the report

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

There is no change in the nature of business of your Company during the year under review as
reported in earlier years.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has identified all key internal financial controls, which impacts the financial
statements, as part of Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs). The SOPs are designed for all critical
processes across all plants, warehouses and offices wherein financial transactions are undertaken.
The SOPs cover the standard processes, risks, key controls and each process is identified to a
process owner. The financial controls are tested for operating effectiveness through management
ongoing monitoring and review process and independently by the Internal Audit. In our view the
Internal Financial Controls, effecting the financial statements are adequate and are operating
effectively.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has identified all key internal financial controls, which impacts the financial
statements, as part of Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs). The SOPs are designed for all critical
processes across all plants, warehouses and offices wherein financial transactions are undertaken.
The SOPs cover the standard processes, risks, key controls and each process is identified to a
process owner. The financial controls are tested for operating effectiveness through management
ongoing monitoring and review process and independently by the Internal Audit. In our view the
Internal Financial Controls, effecting the financial statements are adequate and are operating
effectively.

RISK & CONCERNS

AtJotindra Infrastructure Limited all key functions and divisions are independently responsible to
monitor risk associated within their respective areas of operations such as marketing, trading,
finance, purchase, legal and other issues like health, safety and environment.

Your company has identified the following risks with possible impact on the company and the
mitigation plans of the company:
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Key Risk Impact on the Company Mitigation Plans
Commodity Price/availability |[Risk of price fluctuation on |Any volatility in the prices or
Risk the basic material. disruption in availability ofthe

materials can impact the
profitability of the Company.
However, JST has strong
relationships with theraw
material suppliers and

availability of optimum level

of raw material.

Interest Rate-risk. Any increase in interestrate |[Dependence on debt s
can affect the finance cost. minimum and we have
sufficient funds with Banks to
settle the entire debt incase
need arises.

Compliance risk. Any default can attract heavy By regularly monitoring and
penal provisions. reviewing of changes in the
regulatory framework and
timely compliance thereof.

HOLDING/SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATE/JOINTVENTURECOMPANY

As on March 31, 2024 the Company have 5 Subsidiaries and 2 Associate Companies as per
Companies Act, 2013 as mentioned hereunder:

A. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

i.  Sarvome Developers private Limited
ii.  Sarvome Housing private Limited
iii.  Sarvome Infrastructure projects private Limited
iv.  Biahriji Developers private Limited.
v. VL Land and Housing private Limited

B. ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
i.  S.K.D Estates Private Limited
ii.  JST Infrastructure Private Limited
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AUDITORS
M/s. HUMS & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Delhi (FRN: 022230N )Statutory Auditors of the
Company, were appointed as Statutory Auditors for a period of 5 years in the Annual General

Meeting held in the year 2022.

The Auditors Report on the accounts of the Company is self-explanatory and therefore, in the
opinion of the Directors, do not call for any further comments.

COST AUDITORS

The Company has appointed M/s Nisha Vats & Co., Cost Accountants, for conducting the audit of
cost records of the Company for the financial year 2023-24.

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Act read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit& Auditors) Rule,
2014 ratification of the remuneration of Cost Auditors is being sought from the Members of the
Company at the ensuing AGM.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

The Board of Directors of the Company, in compliance with section 204 of the Act have appointed
CS SANMEET KAUR, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. ACS 54115 and Certificate of
Practice No. 22586), as the Secretarial Auditors to conduct secretarial audit of the Company for
the FY 2023-24. The Secretarial Audit Report as per Section 204 of the Act for FY 2023-24 is placed
as annexure to this report.

No adverse comments have been made in the said report by the Practicing Company Secretary.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The particulars required to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are annexed as Annexure-I.

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12)
FTHECOMPANIESACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND

REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIALPERSONNEL)RULES, 2014

The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary during the financial year 2023-24, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the
median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial year 2023-24 and the
comparison of remuneration with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and
justification thereof.
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Name of Ratio of | % Increase in | % Increase | Average percentile
Director/ KMP Remuneratio | the in the | increase already
n of Director | Remuneration median made in the salaries
to median . : 1 h
remuneration Remunerati | of employees other
of Employee on of | than the managerial
Employees personnel in the last
financial year and its
comparison with the
percentile increase in
the managerial
remuneration  and

justification thereof
and point out if there
are any exceptional
circumstances  for
increase in  the
managerial
remuneration

NA

Further it is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees.

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

-No Frauds Were Reported By Auditors Or Reported To Central Government In The Financial Year
Ended On March 31, 2024.

-None of The Directors of Your Company is disqualified as per the Provisions of Section 164(2) Of

the Act. The Directors Of The Company Have Made Necessary Disclosures, As Required Under
Various Provisions Of The Act.

DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board of Directors has laid down Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior
Management of the Company. The copy of Code of Conduct as applicable to the Directors
(including Senior Management of the Company) is uploaded on the website of the Company.

The Managing Director of the Company has issued a Declaration that the Members of the Board
of Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of
Conduct of Board of Directors and Senior Management. As there is no Chief Executive Officer in
the Company, this Declaration has been issued by the Managing Director of the Company, which is
appended, to this Report,
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Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items
as there were no transactions on these items during the year under review:

a) Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

b) Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any
scheme save and except ESOS referred to in this Report.

¢) Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company receive any
remuneration or commission from any of its subsidiaries.

d) During the year under review, neither any fraud of any kind on or by the Company has
been noticed by the Board of Directors of the Company nor reported by the Auditors of the
Company. The Company has an internal financial control system, commensurate to the size
of the business, in place.

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE & ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT.

The company has not made any application under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 and There are no proceedings pending against the Company under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC Code).

Further, there has not been any instance of one-time settlement of the Company with any
bank or financial institution

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wishes to express its gratitude and places on record its sincere appreciation for
the commitment and efforts put in by all the employees. And record their sincere thanks to
bankers, business associates, consultants, and various Government Authorities for their
continued support extended to your Companies activities during the year under review.

Your Directors also acknowledges gratefully the shareholders for their support and confidence
reposed on your Company. We place on record our appreciation of the contribution made by our
employees at all levels. Our consistent growth was made possible by their hard work, solidarity,
cooperation and support

For on and Behalf of JOTINDRA INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
(Formerly Known as JOTINDRA STEEL AND TUBES LIMITED)

Sd/- Sd/-

AKHIL KUMAR SUREKA VINAYAK SUREKA
DIN: 00060206 DIN:08913245

(Managing Director) (Director
PLACE:FARIDABAD
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Annexure-I

Disclosure of particulars u/s 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act,2013 read with the Companies

(Accounts) Rules,2014 are given as under:

A CONSERVATIONOFENERGY:

(a) | The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

(b) | The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate
sources of energy

(c) | The capital investment on energy conservation
equipment’s

TECHNOLOGYABSORPTION

The efforts made towards technology absorption

the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction ,product
development or import substitution

In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years
reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)-

The details of technology imported

The year of import

Whether the technology been fully absorbed

if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place,
and the reasons thereof.

The expenditure incurred on Research and Development

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of (Rs.)

actual inflows during the year and the 2023-24 2022-23

Foreign Exchange outgo during the year
in terms of actual outflow

Earning in Foreign Exchange NIL NIL

Payment in Foreign Currency NIL NIL

For on and Behalf of JOTINDRA INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
(Formerly Known as JOTINDRA STEEL AND TUBES LIMITED)

Sd/- Sd/-

AKHIL KUMAR SUREKA VINAYAK SUREKA
DIN: 00060206 DIN: 08913245

DATE: 04.09.2023 (Managing Director) (Director)
PLACE: FARIDABAD
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Annexure

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/associate

companies/joint ventures

(Pursuant to first proviso to subsection (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Part "A": Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each
subsidiary to be presented with amounts in ‘000’ Indian Rs)

1. | SI. No. 05
2. | Name of the subsidiary Sarvome Sarvome | Sarvome | Bihariji VL Land
Developers Pvt. | Infrastru | Housing | Developers | and
Ltd. cture pvt. Itd. pvt. Itd. Housing
Projects Pvt. Ltd.
pvt. Itd.

3. | Reporting period for the 01.04.23- 01.04.23- | 01.04.23 01.04.23- 01.04.2
subsidiary concerned, if different 31.03.24 31.03.24 - 31.03.24 3-
from the holding 31.03.24 31.23.2

4. Company's reporting perlod 01.04.23- 01.04.23 01.04.23 01.04.23- 01.04.23

31.03.24 - - 31.03.24 -
31.03.24 | 31.03.24 31.03.24

5. | Reporting currency and Exchange N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A
rate as on the last date of the
relevant financial year in the case
of foreign subsidiaries.

6. | Share capital 500.00 500.00 500.00 600.00 1000.00

7. | Reserves & surplus 2736.53 6284.88 | (270.24) | (100233.62) 23.96

4 75
9. | Total Liabilities 19781.26 54405.7 30 64960.10 | 472464.
5 79
10.| Investments NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
11| Turnover NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

12.| Profit before taxation (37.06) 769.08 (22.73) (75.48) (25.51)

13.| Provision for taxation NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

14.| Profit after taxation (18.67) 702.80 (22.73) (75.48) (25.51)

15| Proposed Dividend NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

16.| % of shareholding 80.02% 80.02% | 81.80% 70% 96%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.
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Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to
Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures JST SKD Estates pvt. Itd.
Infrastructure
pvt. Itd.
1.Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 01/06/2024 01/06/2024
2.Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by 45% 42.5%
the company on the year end
No. 1,350 42,500
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint 135.00 4,250.00
Venture
Extend of Holding % 45% 42.5%
Name of Associates/Joint Ventures Namel Name?2
3.Description of how there is significant Jotindra Jotindra Infrastructure
influence Infrastructure |Limited (Formerly Known as
Limited Jotindra Steel & Tubes Ltd). .
(Formerly Known| holds 42.5% Shares in the
as Jotindra Steel company
& Tubes Ltd).
holds 45% Shares

in the company

4.Reason why the associate/joint venture is not NIL NIL
consolidated
5.Networth attributable to Shareholding as per 93.659 45086.138

latest audited Balance Sheet

6.Profit/Loss for the year -11.01 -455.47
i. Considered in Consolidation -11.01 -455.47
i.  Not Considered in Consolidation NIL NIL
3. Names of associates/joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. NIL

4. Names of associates/joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.
NIL

By Order of the Board of Jotindra Infrastructure Limited
(Formerly Known as Jotindra Steel And Tubes Ltd.

Sd/- Sd/-
Akhil Kumar Sureka Vinayak Sureka
Managing Director Director

(DIN: 00060206)) (DIN: 08913245)
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(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s
length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or NIL NIL
arrangements or transactions not
at arm's length basis
(a) Name(s) of the related party NIL NIL
and nature of relationship
(b) Nature of NIL NIL
contracts/arrangements/transa
ctions
(c) Duration of the NIL NIL
contracts/arrangements/transa
ctions
(d) Salient terms of the NIL NIL
contracts or arrangements
or transactions including the
value, if any
(e) Justification for entering into NIL NIL
such contracts or arrangements
or transactions
(f) Date of approval by the Board NIL NIL
(g) Amount paid as advances, if NIL NIL
any:
(h) Date on which the special NIL NIL
resolution was passed in
general meeting as required
under first proviso to section
188
2. Details of material contracts or
arrangement or transactions at
arm's length basis
(a) Name(s) of the related party Sarvome Developers Mr. Akhil Kumar
and nature of relationship pvt. Itd. Sureka
Sarvome Housing Mr. Satish Kumar
pvt. 1td. Gupta
Sarvome . .
Infrastructure Mr. Nimanshu Singh
Projects pvt. Itd.
Bihariji Developers
pvt. 1td.
VL Land and Housing
pvt. 1td.
Bihariji Highrise pvt.
Itd.
Bihariji Properties
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pvt. Itd.
— SKD Estates pvt. Itd.
— JST Infrastructure
pvt. Itd.

(Enterprises where
control exist)

(key management
personnel)

(b) Nature of — Purchase of goods
contracts/arrangements/transa | _  Pprofessional Charges
ctions — Rent paid

— Purchase of Shares
—  Sold of Shares

— Interest on loan
received

— Loans & advances
given

— Loans & advances
given received back

— Loans & advances
taken

— Loans & Advances
taken repaid

— Reimbursement

— Loans & advances
given received back

— Reimbursement
paid/received

— Remuneration Paid

paid/received
— Investmentin
Associates/
Partnerships/ JVs/
Subsidiaries
— Share of Loss from
partnership
— Advance Received
against Shops
(c) Duration of the 365 days 365 days
contracts/arrangements/transa
ctions
(d) Salient terms of the As per agreed terms As per agreed terms
contracts or arrangements
or transactions including the
value, if any:
(e) Date(s) of approval by the
Board, if any: 08/04/2023 08/04/2023
3. Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL NIL

By Order of the Board of Jotindra Infrastructure Limited

(Formerly Known as Jotindra Steel And Tubes Ltd.

Sd/- Sd/-
Akhil Kumar Sureka Vinayak Sureka
Managing Director Director

(DIN: 00060206)) (DIN: 08913245)
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31stMARCH, 2024
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule
No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel)
Rules, 2014]
To
The Members
M/S Jotindra Infrastructure Limited
14/3, Mathura Road,
Faridabad-121003 HR

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by M/s Jotindra Infrastructure Limited
(CIN:L27104HR1970PLC005240) (hereinafter called the company), Secretarial Audit was conducted
in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion,
the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 complied
with the statutory provisions listed here under and also that the Company has proper Board-processes
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

W) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board

of India Act, 1992(‘SEBI Act’):-
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COMPANY SECRETARY
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Street No. 6, Near Model Town, Delhi- 110009 Email: cssanmeetkaur@gmail.com

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011- to the extent applicable to the company;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 and
the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended- to the extent applicable
to the company;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009- Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999- Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008-
Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;- to the extent applicable
to the company;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009- Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period;

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy back of Securities) Regulations, 1998;- Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period; and

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015- to the extent applicable to the company.

(vi) (Mention the other laws as may be applicable specifically to the company):
1. The Factories Act, 1948;

2. Industrial Disputes Act,1947;

3. The Payment of Wages Act, 1936;

4. The Minimum Wages Act,1948;

5. Employees’ State Insurance Act,1948;

6. The Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,1952;
7. Equal Remuneration Act, 1976;

8. The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970;

9. The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961;

10. The Payment of Bonus Act,1965;

11. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986;

12. The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974;

13. The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981;

14. The Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,

2013.
15. Real Estate Regulation & Development Act, 2016.

[ have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India
Ltd.,
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During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rule

les,
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Street No. 6, Near Model Town, Delhi- 110009 Email: cssanmeetkaur@gmail.com

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of executive directors, non-
executive directors and independent directors including a woman director. There is a change in the
composition of the Board of Directors during the year under review.

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the audit period were carried
out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

During the year under review, the Company has changed its name from Jotindra Steels and Tubes Limited to
Jotindra Infrastructure Limited w.e.f. 08/02/2024. The Company is in compliance with all the conditions and
has obtained all the necessary approvals required for the purpose.

Adequate notice is given to all directors at least seven days in advance to schedule the Board Meetings.
Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the
minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

[ further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

[ further report that the Company is generally regular in filing of e-forms with the Registrar of Companies
within the time prescribed under the Act.

There was a continuing fine imposed on a Company by MSEI for non-compliance in submission of
Financials on time for the quarter ended 31/03/2022, 30/06/2022 and 31/12/2022. The Application for
waiver of fine was filed with the exchange and the request for waiver off fine was accepted by Stock
Exchange.

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral
part of this report.

Sd/-

Sanmeet Kaur

(Company Secretary)

COP. No- 22586 Date: 04.09.2024
M No: 54115 Place: Delhi
UDIN: A054115F001133952
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Sanmeet Kaur
COMPANY SECRETARY

Mahendru Enclave, C-152, 3rd Floor, M: + 91-9711929836
Street No. 6, Near Model Town, Delhi- 110009 Email: cssanmeetkaur@gmail.com
Annexure A
To,

The Members,

M/S Jotindra Infrastructure Limited
14/3, Mathura Road,
Faridabad-121003 HR

My Report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. 1 have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the
processes and practices followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts
of the company.

4. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test check basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Sd/-

Sanmeet Kaur

(Company Secretary)

COP. No- 22586 Date: 04.09.2024
M No: 54115 Place: Delhi
UDIN: A054115F001133952
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JOTINDRA INFRASTRUCTURE
LIMITED (Formerly known as
JOTINDRASTEEL&TUBESLTD).
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ANNEXURE

Top 10 Employees In Terms of Remuneration who were Employed throughout the Financial

Nature of If Employee is relative
Employment of any director or
(whether Qualification and Date of Manager, provide the |Last Employment |% Equity
contractual or  [Experience of the Commencement name of such Director |before joining the |Capital
Sr.no [Name Designation Annual Gross Otherwise) employee of Employment D.O.B. Age or Manager company Held
1 SH.AKHIL KUMAR MANAGING DIRECTOR 1512000 Regular Graduation 01-07-2008 08-10-1978 46 No 1stEmployement 10.75
SUREKA
2 SOURABH SHARMA MARKITING HEAD 1305000 Reaul MBA(6Years) Rejoin01.02.2022 |10.09.1984 40 No Udayachalleasing N.A.
egular
3 BRIJESH KUMAR SINGH |CRM HEAD 1260000 Regular Post Graduation (11Years)|Rejoin01.02.2022 |01.04.1986 38 No UdayachallLeasing N.A.
4 SHIKHA MALHOTRA DIRECTOR 1200000 Regular Graduation 11.10.2023 11/09/1983 41 N N.A.
o
5 VIJAY KUMAR Project Manager 1200000 Regular Graduation 18.08.2023 No N.A.
6 MANISH KUMAR Project Manager 1080000 Regular Graduation(25Years) 01.08.2019 01.07.1976 47 No ParasConstruction N.A.
PANDEY
7 Mrs.VIJAY BHARDWAJ |GENERAL ADMIN. 1056000 Regular Graduation(20Years) 01.10.2019 01.03.1957 67 No 1stEmployement N.A.
8 RAMAN KUMAR Project Manager 1002000[Regular Graduation 25.08.2023 N N.A.
o
9 NIMANSHU SINGH COMPANY SECRETARY 840000 [Regular CS, LLB, BCOM. 15.02.2023 09.11.1995 28 No N.A.
10 SATISH KUMAR GUPTA |ChiefFinancialOfficer 735072 Regular Graduation(43Years) 01.11.2018 02.09.1956 66 No Sarvome N.A.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

Jotindra Infrastructure Limited is committed towards achieving the highest standards of Corporate Governance,
ensures effective engagement with various stakeholders and evolving with changing times. The Company has a
strong legacy of transparency and ethical governance practices. The members of the Board of Directors of the

Company are very responsive and their depth of experience helps the management team evolve measured
responses to issues that come up.

The Company focuses on implementing the robust, resilient and best corporate practices in every facet of its
operations and in all spheres of its activities with a view to: -

A. Safeguard shareholders’ interest through sound business decisions, prudent financial management and
high standard of business ethics, and

B. Achieve transparency, accountability and integrity in the dealings and transactions of the Company.

For your Company, good corporate governance is a synonym for sound management, transparency and
adequate disclosure, encompassing good corporate practices, procedures, standards and implicit rules which
propel a company to take sound decisions.

The Company is in compliance with the requirements stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 read with Schedule
V and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations), as amended
from time to time and as applicable, with regard to Corporate Governance including relaxations granted by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) from time to time.

The Company has set high standards of ethical and responsible conduct of business to create value for all its
stakeholders. For effective implementation of the Corporate Governance practices, the Company has a well-
defined policy framework inter-alia, consisting of the following:

a) Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management Personnel

b) Code for Prevention of Insider Trading

c) Whistle Blower Policy

d) Archival policy

e) Environmental policy

f) Nomination and remuneration policy

g) CSR policy

h) Materiality of Related Party Transactions and dealing with Related Party Transactions
i) Policy for determination of materiality for disclosure of Events or information.

ALL POLICIES ARE AVAILABLE ON COMPANY’S WEBSITE AT https://jotindra.com/

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (BOARD)

A. Composition and size of the Board

The Board is the focal point and custodian of corporate governance for the Company. The Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at Board level
as an essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage. A truly diverse Board will include and
make good use of differences in the skills, regional and industry experience, background, gender and other
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distinctions between directors. These differences will be considered in determining the optimum
composition of the Board and, when possible, will be balanced appropriately.

The Company’s Board is constituted of highly experienced professionals from diverse backgrounds. The
Board’s constitution is in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI LODR and is in accordance with
the highest standards of Corporate Governance, which ensures an appropriate mix of Executive/Non-
Executive, Woman Directors and Independent Directors with demonstrated skill sets and relevant
experience. The Board members have professional knowledge and experience, in diverse fields viz. finance,
audit, banking, public policy and legal / judicial, thereby bringing about an enabling environment for value
creation through sustainable business growth.

Presently, as on the date of this report, the Board consists of five directors. The Board comprises directors
that bring a wide range of skills, expertise and experience which enhance overall board effectiveness.
Details of Directors, directorship in other companies and also category of directorship, as on March 31,
2024, are as under :

NAME OF

| THE

DIRECTOR

NATURE
OF
OFFICE

Date

appoi
ntme

Names of the
other entities
where the
person is a
director

Category
of
directorshi
p in other
entities

No. of Directorship

No. of

Chairmanships

Stakeholder

Memberships/
in Audit/
Committee(s)

(Refer Regulation 26(1)

Directors
hip in
listed
entities
including
this listed
entity

Independent
Directorship
in listed
entities
including
this listed
entity

Membershi
ps

Chairmanship
s

=

AKHIL
KUMAR
SUREKA

Managing
director

|O\1O
(o] =
DN
(el (e}

VL LAND AND
HOUSING
PRIVATE
LIMITED

Director

SARVOME
HOUSING
PRIVATE
LIMITED

Director

SARVOME
INFRASTRUC
TURE
PROJECTS
PRIVATE
LIMITED

Director

SARVOME
DEVELOPERS
PRIVATE
LIMITED

Director

VL ESTATES
PRIVATE
LIMITED

Additional
director

2

0

BIHARIJI
DEVELOPERS
PRIVATE
LIMITED

Director
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S K D | Additional
ESTATES director
PRIVATE
LIMITED
V.K. FLATS | Additional
PRIVATE director
LIMITED
2. | SHIKHA executiv | 11/1 1 0 2 1
MALHOTRA | e-Non- 0/20
indepen | 23
dent
director
3. | SATVINDER | Non - | 08/0 1 1 2 2
ARORA executiv | 4/20
e 23
indepen
dent
director
4. | VINAYAK Non- 10/1 | SRI NARAYAN | Independe | 3 3 2 0
SUREKA executiv | 0/20 | RAJKUMAR nt
e 20 MERCHANTS | director
indepen LIMITED
dent
director QUALITY Independe
SYNTHETICS | nt
INDUSTRIES director
LIMITED
5. | TANVI Non- 05/0
DUBEY executiv | 2/20
e 24
indepen
dent
director

None of the Directors held directorship in more than 7 listed companies. Further, none of the IDs of the
Company served as an ID in more than 7 listed companies. None of the IDs serving as a whole-time
director/managing director in any listed entity serves as an ID of more than 3 listed entities.

None of the Directors held directorship in more than 20 Indian companies, with not more than 10 public
limited companies. None of the Directors is a member of more than 10 committees or acted as chairperson of
more than 5 committees (being AC and SRC, as per Regulation 26(1) of the Listing Regulations) across all the
public limited companies in which he/she is a director.

The necessary disclosures regarding committee positions have been made by the Directors. All IDs of the
Company have been appointed as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and Listing
Regulations.
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G : he skills/ ise/ f the Board of Di

Core skills/expertise/competencies identified by the board of directors Those actually available with the
As required in the context of its business(es) and sector(s) for it to| board

function effectively

1. Ability to understand financial Markets As per the Board, all these
Ability to understand Regulatory/Statutory framework applicable to | skills/expertise/ competencies are
the Company available with the Board

3. Quick decision making

4. Understanding of Company’s business

5. Experience in developing policies and processes relating to
corporate governance

6. Leadership skills for guiding the management team

Ability to formulate long term and short term business strategies

Ability to understand Financial Statements

o0 =

Confirmation by the directors regarding Independent directors

The Board of Directors do hereby confirm that in the opinion of the board, the independent directors fulfill
the conditions specified in SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are
independent of the management.

The Independent Directors have submitted a declaration that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and Regulation 16(1) (b) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors are hosted on the website of the Company
https://jotindra.com/index.html

Note -

1. The Board do hereby confirms that all the present Independent Directors of the Company fulfil the
conditions specified in the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 and are
independent of the management of the Company.

2. The Company keeps its Directors informed of the activities of the Company, its management and
operations and provides an overall industry perspective as well as issues being faced by the industry
from time to time.

Changes in Board composition

During the year F.Y. 2023-24, Shri Rannveer Singh Rishi resigned as Independent Directors on account of his
professional obligations, and consequent upon his resignation Mr. Satvinder Arora was appointed as the
Independent Director w.e.f 08.04.2023, Further Miss Shikha Malhotra and Mrs Tanvi Dubey was appointed
w.e.f11.10.2023 and 05.202.2024 as a Executive Director and Independent Director.

B. Number and Dates of Board Meetings held, attendance of Directors thereat and at
the last AGM held

The Board Meetings of the Company are held in a highly professional manner, after giving proper notice,
Board papers, agenda and other explanatory notes / relevant information to each of the Directors of the

Company, well in advance. The gap between two Board Meetings did not exceed one hundred & twenty
(120) days. The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings.

During the year a separate meeting of the independent directors was held inter-alia to review the
performance of non-independent directors and the board as a whole.
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S Name of Director Category of | Number of | Attendance at the
No. Directorship Board Meetings | Last AGM held on
Attended 30-09-2023
1 |SHRI AKHIL KUMAR SUREKA Managing director 10 YES
2 SMT.VEENA AGGARWAL Non - executive - 01 YES
Non - independent
director
3  |SHRIVINAYAK SUREKA Non - executive 11 YES
independent director
4 SHRI RANNVEER SINGH RISHI Non - executive 01
independent director
5 SHRI SATVINDER ARORA Non - executive 09 YES
independent director
6 MS. SHIKHA MALHOTRA Executive director 04 N.A
7 MRS. TANVI DUBEY Non — executive 00 N.A
independent director

During 2023-24, Eleven Board Meetings were held. The dates of the Board Meetings are fixed well in advance
and intimated to the Board members to enable them to plan their schedule accordingly.

Details of the Board Meetings held during 2023-24 are as under:

S.NO DATE OF MEETING DIRECTORS PRESENT

1 08/04/2023 3

04/05/2023

29/05/2023

14/08/2023

05/09/2023

11/10/2023

14/11/2023

28/12/2023

O (0| |0V |Ul|» (W

05/02/2024

14/02/2024

WW WD | Wbhwww

R e
o

05/03/2024

c. COMMITTEES OF BOARD

The Committees constituted by the Board focus on specific areas and take informed decisions within the
framework designed by the Board and make specific recommendations to the Board on matters in their
areas or purview. All decisions and recommendations of the Committees are placed before the Board for
information or for approval, if required. To enable better and more focused attention on the affairs of the
Company, the Board has delegated particular matters to the Committees of the Board set up for the
purpose.

These Committees monitor the activities falling within their terms of reference. Further, terms of reference
were revised to align with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI LODR, 2015.

The number of Directorships held by all Directors as well as their Membership / Chairmanship in
Committees is within the prescribed limits under the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations.

The role and the composition of these Committees including number of meetings held during the financial
year and participation of the members at the meetings of the Committees, during the year are as under:




a) Audit Committee

Composition

The constitution of the Audit Committee is in accordance with the requirements of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (here-in-after known the “Act”) The Audit Committee comprises of three members,

namely:
S. Name of the member Designation in committee
no.
1. SHRI VINAYAK SUREKA Chairperson
SHRI AKHIL KUMAR SUREKA Member
SHRISATVINDER ARORA Member

sarvome

All members are financially literate and bring in expertise in the fields of finance, accounting, development,
strategy and management.

Meeting dates and number of directors present

Dates of meetings of audit committee are as follows:

s. ho Date Directors present
1. 29/05/2023 3
2. 14/08/2023 3
3. 14/11/2023 3
4, 14/02/2024 3

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as set-out in Section 177 of the Companies Act, which are as
follows :

e To oversee the financial reporting process and disclosure of financial information

e To review with Management, Quarterly, Half Yearly and Annual Financial Statements and ensure their
accuracy and correctness before submission to the Board;

e To review with Management and Internal Auditors, the adequacy of internal control systems, approving
the internal audit plans/ reports and reviewing the efficacy of their function, discussion and review of
periodic audit reports including findings of internal investigations;

e Torecommend the appointment of the Internal and Statutory Auditors and their remuneration;

e Toreview and approve required provisions to be maintained as per IRAC norms and write off decisions;

e To hold discussions with the Statutory and Internal Auditors;

e Review and monitoring of the Auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process;

o Examination of the Auditors’ report on financial statements of the Company (in addition to the financial
statements) before submission to the Board;

e Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;

e Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

e Review of Credit Concurrent Audit Report/ Concurrent Audit Report of Treasury;

e Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

e Evaluation of the risk management systems (in addition to the internal control systems);




sarvome

e Review and monitoring of the performance of the Statutory Auditors and effectiveness of the audit
process;

e To hold post audit discussions with the Auditors to ascertain any area of concern;

e To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism; and

o Review of information system audit of the internal systems and processes to assess the operational risks
faced by the Company and also ensures that the information system audit of internal systems and
processes is conducted periodically.

Attendance during the year

The Audit Committee had four (4) Meetings during the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 and the
required quorum was present.

Attendance details of audit committee six meetings held during financial year 2023-24, are as follows:

S.NO | NAME OF MEMBER TOTAL NUMBER OF MEETINGS ATTENDED
1. SHRI VINAYAK SUREKA 4
2. SHRI AKHIL KUMAR SUREKA 3
3. SHRI SATVINDER ARORA 4

b) Nomination and remuneration committee

Composition

The Nomination & Remuneration (N&R) Committee is in accordance with the requirements of Section 178
of the Companies Act, 2013 and regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR), The N&R comprises of three members,

namely:
s.no. | Name of the member Designation in committee
1. SHRI SATVINDER ARORA Chairperson
2. SHRI VINAYAK SUREKA Member
3. SMT. TANVI DUBEY Member

Meeting dates and number of directors present

Dates of meetings of audit committee are as follows:

s.no Date of meeting Number of directors present
1 04/04/2023 2
2 01/05/2023 2
3 03/10/2023 2
4 02/02/2024 2

Terms of reference
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The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as set-out in Section 178 of the
Companies Act, which are as follows:

e Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
Director and recommend to the Board of Directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees;

e Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board of
Directors;

e Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior
Management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board of Directors their
appointment and removal;

e Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent Director, on the basis of the
report of performance evaluation of Independent Directors;

e To ensure ‘fit and proper’ status of proposed/ existing Directors;

e To recommend to the Board all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to Directors, KMPs and Senior
Management;

Meetings and Attendance during the year

The nomination and remuneration Committee had four (4) Meetings during the financial year ended on 31st
March, 2023 and the required quorum was present. As per details thereof and the names of Directors who
attended the said meetings, are as under: -

S.NO | NAME OF MEMBER TOTAL NUMBER OF MEETINGS ATTENDED
1 SHRI SATVINDER ARORA 4
2 SHRI VINAYAK SUREKA 4
3 SMT. TANVI DUBEY 0

Policy for selection and appointment of Directors

The Company shall consider the following aspects while appointing a person as a Director on the Board of the
Company:

1. Skills and Experience:

The candidate shall have appropriate skills and experience in one or more fields of technical operations,
finance, law, management, sales, marketing, administration, public administrative services, corporate
governance, or any other discipline related to the Company’s business.

2. Age Limit:

The candidate should have completed the age of twenty-one (21) years and should not have attained the age of
seventy (70) years.

3. Conflict of Interest:

The candidate should not hold Directorship in any competitor company, and should not have any conflict of
interest with the Company
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4. Directorship:

The number of companies in which the candidate holds Directorship should not exceed the number prescribed
under the Act or under the Listing Agreement requirements.

5. Independence:

The candidate proposed to be appointed as Independent Director, should not have any direct or indirect
material pecuniary relationship with the Company and must satisfy the requirements imposed under the Act or
under the Listing Agreement requirements.

Performance Evaluation:

The process approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee requires the Chairman to initiate the
performance evaluation process in the months of January-March every year. The performance evaluation is
conducted based on approved criteria in the evaluation forms. The process highlights are as under:

1. Board:

Each Board member completes the self-evaluation form. Independent Directors discuss the self-evaluation
forms in a separate meeting and share their feedback with the Chairman. The Chairman discusses the
evaluation form analysis with the Managing Director and later with the entire Board at the Board Meeting.

2. Committees:

Each Committee member completes the self-evaluation form and shares feedback with the Chairman. The
Chairman discusses the evaluation form analysis with the Managing Director and later with the entire Board at
the Board Meeting.

3. Chairman and Executive Directors:

Each Board member completes the peer evaluation form. Independent Directors discuss the peer evaluation
forms in a separate meeting and share their feedback with the Chairman. The Chairman conveys feedback
individually to the concerned Directors.

4. Independent Directors:

Each Board member completes the peer evaluation and shares feedback with the Chairman. The Chairman
conveys feedback individually o the concerned Directors.

Remuneration to Directors:
1. Remuneration of Executive Directors

The Managing Director and other Executive Directors are being paid remuneration as recommended by
Nomination & Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors/ Shareholders. The elements
of the remuneration package of Executive Directors comprise salary, commissions, perquisites, other benefits &
allowances and post retirement benefits.

The same is decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee within the overall limits as approved by
the Board / Shareholders. The annual increments of Executive Directors are linked to their performance & are
elected by Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The notice period presently applicable to them is as per the Company policies. No severance fee is payable by
the Company on termination of Executive Directors. The Whole Time Directors of the Company have been
appointed by the Shareholders for a fixed tenure.
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2. Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors

Though day-to-day management of the Company is delegated to its Executive Directors, the Non-Executive
Directors also contribute significantly for laying down the policies and providing guidelines for conduct of
Company’s business. Considering the need for the enlarged role and active participation / contribution of Non-
Executive Directors to achieve the growth in operations and profitability of the Company, it is appropriate that
the services being rendered by them to the Company are recognized by it by way of payment of compensation,
commensurate with their contributions, as permissible.

The Company’s Non-Executive Directors between them have extensive entrepreneurial experience, and deep
experience in the fields of financial sector regulation and supervision, banking, judiciary, accounting,
administration, and law enforcement etc.

The Non-Executive Directors both exercise effective oversight, and also guide the senior management team.

NEDs/Independent Directors may receive remuneration by way of fee for attending meetings of the Board or
Committee thereof or any other meeting for any other purpose whatsoever as may be decided by the Board.
The Board has been empowered to enhance the sitting fees up to the maximum limit allowed by the Companies
Act, 2013 and Rules there under.

The NEDs shall receive Sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board or Committees (as mentioned above)
thereof or any other meeting as required by Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Listing
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 or other applicable laws.

Commission is paid to the NEDs within the monetary limit approved by the shareholders of the Company
subject to the same not exceeding 1% of the net profits of the Company computed as per the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The complete Remuneration Policy is also available at the website of the Company, https://jotindra.com/

Sitting fees of Rs.5000/- for attending Board Meeting is paid to each of the directors, who are not paid any
remuneration. There is no pecuniary relationship and transactions with Non-Executive Directors.

c) Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Composition

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee (SRC) is constituted in line with the provisions of company’s
act, 2013 and currently comprises of three members, namely:

s.no. | Name of the member Designation in committee
1. SHRI SATVINDER ARORA Chairperson

2. SMT. TANVI DUBEY Member

3. SHRI AKHIL KUMAR SUREKA Member

Meeting dates and number of directors present

Dates of meetings of audit committee are as follows:

s.no Date of meeting Number of directors present
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1 04/04/2023 2
2. 03/07/2023 2
3. 11/10/2023 2
4. 08/01/2024 2

Terms of Reference

To approve requests for share transfers and transmissions;

To approve the requests pertaining to dematerialization of shares/sub-division/consolidation/issue of
renewed and duplicate share certificates etc.;

To oversee all matters encompassing the Shareholders’ / Investors’ related issues;

Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company, including complaints related to transfer/
transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of
new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.;

Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by Shareholders;

Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services
being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent; and

Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices
by the Shareholders of the Company.

Meetings and Attendance during the year

The nomination and remuneration Committee had four (4) Meetings during the financial year ended on 31st
March, 2023 and the required quorum was present. As per details thereof and the names of Directors who
attended the said meetings, are as under: -

S.NO | NAME OF MEMBER TOTAL NUMBER OF MEETINGS ATTENDED
1. SHRI SATVINDER ARORA 03
2. SMT. TANVI DUBEY 00
3. SHRI AKHIL KUMAR SUREKA 04

Status of Share-transfer/Shareholder’s complaint during the yvear 2023-24:

Number of pending transfers NIL
Number of complaint received by the company NIL
Number of compliant not solved NIL

D. DETAILS OF COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Nimanshu Singh, Compliance officer
Membership number -68281
Email ID: cs1@sarvome.com
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In accordance with Regulation 6 of the Listing Regulations, the Board has appointed Mr. Nimanshu Singh,
Company Secretary as the Compliance Officer.

Compliance officer is responsible for —

1. ensuring conformity with the regulatory provisions applicable to the listed entity in letter and spirit.

2. co-ordination with and reporting to the Board, recognised stock exchange(s) and depositories with respect
to compliance with rules, regulations and other directives of these authorities in manner as specified from
time to time

3. ensuring that the correct procedures have been followed that would result in the correctness, authenticity
and comprehensiveness of the information, statements and reports filed by the listed entity under these
regulations

4. monitoring email address of grievance redressal division as designated by the listed entity for the purpose of
registering complaints by investors

All investor complaints which cannot be settled at the level of the Compliance Officer, are placed before the
Committee for final settlement. The status of total number of complaints received during the year ended March
31, 2024 is as follows:

Complaints as on April 1, 2023 NIL
Complaints Received during the year NIL
Complaints Resolved during the year NIL
Complaints as on March 31, 2024 NIL

E. Detailed reasons for the resignation of an independent director who resigns before the expiry of his tenure
along with a confirmation by such director that there are no other material reasons other than those provided

During the year under review Mr. Ranveer singh Rishi resigned from the Directorship of the company w.e.f
08.04.2023 and the confirmation was given from his side that there were no material Reasons other than
those were mentioned in the resignation letter.

F. Code of Conduct for the Directors & Senior Managerial Personnel

In compliance to the provisions of Regulations, the Board has laid down a code of conduct for all the Board
Members and Senior Managerial Personnel and all Board Members and Senior Managerial Personnel have
affirmed compliance of code of conduct as on 31st March, 2022 and a declaration to that effect duly signed
by the Managing Director is attached and forms part of this report.

G. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
The Company has provided adequate and timely information to its Member’s, inter-alia, through the
following means:

a. Publication of financial Results: The quarterly / annual results of the Company are published in the
leading newspapers , “THE IMPRESSIVE TIMES” AND “PRATHA KIRAN’

b. Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report has been included in the Annual Report, which forms a
part of the Annual Report.

c. All policies are available at company website , https://jotindra.com/
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H. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
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1. Location and time of last three Annual General Meetings (AGMs) and number of special resolutions

passed thereat

YEAR MEETING Venue Date Time Special
Resolution
Passed

2020- 51T AGM 14/3, Mathura Road, Faridabad-121003 29.09.2021 | 2.00 pm | None

21 (Haryana)

2021- 52ND AGM 14/3, Mathura Road, Faridabad-121003 29.09.2022 | 03.00 None

22 (Haryana) pm

2022- 53RD AGM 14/3, Mathura Road, Faridabad-121003 30.09.2023 | 12.30 None

23 (Haryana) pm

2. DETAILS OF VOTING PATTERN

As per the provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, the shareholders were given the
option to vote on all resolutions through electronic means, and by means of poll at the AGM. Ms. Jyoti
Arya, Practicing Company Secretary (M.No.-A48050/COP-17651) of M/s. Jyoti Arya & Associates was
appointed as the Scrutinizer, for conducting the voting / poll and remote e-voting process in a fair and
transparent manner.

Extraordinary General Meeting:

One Extraordinary General Meeting of the Members was held during the Financial Year 2023-24 which
was held on 20.01.2024.

Postal ballot in last 3 years

There were Two resolutions which were passed through Postal Ballot during the last three years.

I. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

AGM: Date, time and venue

54TH AGM to be held on 28th September,
2024 at 14/3, Mathura Road, Faridabad-
121003 (Haryana) at 12.30 pm

High/low of market price of the
Company’

Low price 2.50
High 2.70

Registrar & Transfer Agents

M/S. BEETAL FINANCIAL & COMPUTER
SERVICES (P) LTD.,

BEETAL HOUSE,99, MADANGIR, BEHIND
LOCAL, SHOPPING CENTRE, NEAR DADA
HARSUKH DASS MANDIR, NEW DELHI -
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110062
MSEI Symbol- JOTINDRA
Demat ISIN Number for NSDL and CDSL. INE173F01016

Financial Calendar(Tentative)
1. Result of quarter ending 30%june, 2023 declared on 14/08/2023

2. Result of quarter ending 30thseptember 30 , 2023 | 14/11/2023
declared on

3. Result of quarter ending 31stdecember, 2023 declared | 14/02/2024
on

4. Audited Result of financial year ending on 31st march | 01/06/2024
2024 declared on

Share Transfer System All the transfers received are processed
by the Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent. Share Transfers are registered and
returned within maximum of15days from
the date of lodgement if documents are
complete in all respect. In case the shares
are transferred through Demat mode, the
procedure is adopted as stated in
Depositories Act, 1996.

Date of Book closure 22ND TO 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2023

J. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31T MARCH, 2024

The shareholding pattern of the company as on 31stMarch, 2024 is as follows:-

Category No. of Shares Percentage
Promoters 2619700 53.7623
Persons acting in concert - -
Mutual Funds and UTI - -

Banks, Financial Institution& - -

Insurance Companies.
FII's - -
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Corporate Bodies

Indian Public 2253049 46.2377
NRIs/OCBs - -
Total 4872749 100.00

K. Listing details

a. Listing of Equity Shares:

The Company's Equity Shares are listed on METROPOLITAN STOCK EXCHANGE OF INDIA

b. Listing and Custodial Fees:

The Company has paid the requisite Annual Listing and Custodial Fees to the Stock Exchanges for the financial years

2023-24 and 2024-25

C. Registrars and Transfer Agents: For share related matters, Members are requested to correspond with the
Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents (RTA) - M/S. BEETAL FINANCIAL & COMPUTER SERVICES (P) LTD ,
quoting their Folio No./DP ID & Client ID at the following addresses. BEETAL HOUSE,99, MADANGIR, BEHIND
LOCAL SHOPPING CENTRE, NEAR DADA HARSUKH DASS MANDIR, NEW DELHI - 110062

L. OTHER DISCLOSURES

Familiarisation Program

Details of familiarisation program imparted to Independent directors are available on the Company’s
website https://jotindra.com/index.html

Archival Policy and Policy on Preservation of Documents

The Archival Policy and Policy on Preservation of Documents, adopted by the Board, are uploaded on the
Company’s website https://jotindra.com/index.html

Policy on Determination of Materiality for Disclosures

The Policy on determination of materiality for disclosures as per regulation 30 of Listing regulation
adopted by the Board, is uploaded on the Company’s websitehttps://jotindra.com/index.html

Disclosure with respect to non-acceptance of any recommendation of any Committee of the Board

which is mandatorily required, along with reasons thereof
All the recommendations of the various mandatory committees were accepted by the Board.

Materially Significant related party transactions

During the period, no transaction of material nature, had been entered into by the Company with
the management or their relatives that may have potential conflict with the interests of the
Company.
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Details of non-compliance by the company, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by Stock

Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last
three years.

There was no instance of penalties, strictures imposed on the company by Stock Exchange or SEBI
or any statutory authority as well as non-compliance of any matter related to the capital markets
during the last three years.

Details of establishment of vigil mechanism , whistle blower policy and affirmation that no personnel
has been denied access to audit committee

In compliance of the above requirements, Jotindra Infrastructure Limited ( here-in-after known
“THE COMPANY"), being a Listed Company has established a Vigil (Whistle Blower) Mechanism and
formulated a Policy in order to provide a framework for responsible and secure whistle
blowing/vigil mechanism.

The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct of
business operations and in order to maintain these standards, the Company encourages its
employees who have genuine concerns about suspected misconduct to come forward and express
these concerns without fear of punishment or unfair treatment.

Complete details of vigil mechanism is available at company website at https://jotindra.com/

DISCLOSURES IN RELATION TO THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

a. Number of complaints filed during the financial year - NIL
b. Number of complaints disposed off during the financial year - NIL
c. Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year - NIL

Total Fees For All Services Paid By The Listed Entity And Its Subsidiaries, On A Consolidated Basis, To
The Statutory Auditor And All Entities In The Network Firm/Network Entity Of Which The Statutory
Auditor Is A Part -

The required information relating to Fees paid to the Auditors for the Financial Year 2023-24 is
given as under :-

PARTICULARS Jotindra steel and | Other subsidiary
tubes limited companies

Fees paid for Audit 100000 40000

Fees paid for other services 1] 0

Total fee paid 100000 40000

In case the securities are suspended from trading, the directors report shall explain the reason
thereof

N/A. The securities of the Company have never been suspended from trading.

Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement
as specified under Regulation 32 (7A)
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Information in this regard is nil as no funds were raised through preferential allotment or qualified
institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A) during the year under review.

Certificate from company secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board of directors are
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies

Certificate Obtained & Attached herewith.

. Compliance certificate from either the auditors or practicing company secretaries regarding
compliance of conditions of corporate governance

Certificate Obtained & Attached herewith.

Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory
requirements pursuant to SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements pursuant to SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 in letter as well as in spirit. The details of these compliances have been given in
the relevant sections of this Report.

Subsidiary Companies

The Audit Committee reviews the financial statements of subsidiaries of the Company. It also reviews
the investments made by such subsidiaries, the statement of all significant transactions and
arrangements entered into by the subsidiaries, if any, and the compliances of each materially significant
subsidiary on a periodic basis.

The minutes of board meetings of the unlisted subsidiary companies are placed before the Board.
Composition of the Board of material subsidiaries is in accordance with Regulation 24(1) of the Listing
Regulations.

Investor safeguards

In pursuit of the Company’s objective to mitigate/avoid risks while dealing with shares and related

matters, the following are the Company’s recommendations to its Members:

1. Open Demat Account and dematerialise your shares Members are requested to convert their
physical holdings into electronic holdings.

2. Consolidate your multiple folios Members are requested to consolidate their shareholdings held
under multiple folios. This facilitates one-stop tracking of all corporate benefits on the shares
and would reduce time and efforts required to monitor multiple folios. It will also help in
avoidance of multiple mailing.

3. Confidentiality of security details Folio Nos./DP ID/Client ID should not be disclosed to any
unknown persons. Signed delivery instruction slips should not be given to any unknown
persons.

4. Dealing with Registered Intermediaries Members should transact through a registered
intermediary. In case the intermediary does not act professionally, Members can take up the
matter with SEBL.

5. Obtain documents relating to purchase and sale of securities A valid Contract
Note/Confirmation Memo should be obtained from the broker/sub-broker within 24 hours of
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execution of the trade. It should be ensured that the Contract Note/Confirmation Memo
contains order no., trade no., trade time, quantity, price and brokerage.

g. Related Party Transactions
The Company has a board approved policy on Related Party Transactions. The policy intends to
ensure that proper reporting, approval and disclosure processes are in place for all related party
transactions.
Policy for dealing with related parties is available at company website https://jotindra.com/

DECLARATION

As required by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, | affirm that Board Members and the Senior Management Personnel have confirmed compliance
with the Codes of Conduct, as applicable to them, for the year ended March 31, 2024.

By Order of the Board of Jotindra Infrastructure Limited

(Formerly Known as Jotindra Steel And Tubes Ltd.)

SD/-

AKHIL KUMAR SUREKA
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 00060206
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Sanmeet Kaur
COMPANY SECRETARY

Mahendru Enclave, C-152, 3rd Floor, M: + 91-9711929836
Street No. 6, Near Model Town, Delhi- 110009 Email: cssanmeetkaur@gmail.com

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To
The Members
M/S JOTINDRA INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

We have examined the books, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company and declarations made by the directors and explanations given by the Company, M/s Jotindra
Infrastructure Limited having CIN L27104HR1970PLC005240 and having registered office at 14/3,
Mathura Road, Faridabad-121003 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the
Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V
Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations
furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2024 have been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

Sr. No. | Name of Directors DIN Date of Appointment
1 Akhil Kumar Sureka 00060206 01/07/2008
2 Vinayak Sureka 08913245 10/10/2020
3 Satvinder Arora 10098409 08/04/2023
4 Shikha Malhotra 07041083 11/10/2023
5 Tanvi Dubey 10491035 05/02/2024

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility
of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our
verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Sd/-

Sanmeet Kaur

(Company Secretary)

COP. No- 22586 Date: 04.09.2024
M No: 54115 Place: Delhi
UDIN: A054115F001130630
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Sanmeet Kaur
COMPANY SECRETARY

Mahendru Enclave, C-152, 3rd Floor, M: + 91-9711929836
Street No. 6, Near Model Town, Delhi- 110009 Email: cssanmeetkaur@gmail.com

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To
The Members
M/S JOTINDRA INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

I have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by M/s Jotindra Infrastructure
Limited (“the Company”), for the year ended on March 31, 2024, as per the relevant provisions of Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the
period from April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our
examination was limited to a review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company
for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression
of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to my examination of the relevant records and
the explanations given to me and the representations made by the Directors, I certify that the Company has
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as mentioned in the above mentioned Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as applicable.

I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Sd/-

Sanmeet Kaur

(Company Secretary)

COP. No- 22586 Date: 04.09.2024
M No: 54115 Place: Delhi

UDIN: A054115F001130663
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The activities, financial condition and results of operations in this discussion and analysis are based
on the performance of Jotindra Infrastructure Limited (Formerly known as Jotindra Steel and Tubes
Limited) and of its Subsidiary and Associate Companies and the audited Consolidated Financial
Statements and audited Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.
The audited Consolidated Financial Statements and audited Standalone Financial Statements included
in this Report and the accompanying notes to accounts. For ease and simplicity of representation,
certain figures may have been rounded off to the nearest number

INDIAN ECONOMY

India's real estate milieu has changed significantly from single standalone buildings with no amenities
to large societies with focused amenities. The focus of developers on Grade A developments, backed
by institutional investors and increasing demand from multinational tenants, led to the onset of
developments.

These developments vis-a-vis buildings provide added benefits, such as gymnasium, multi-purpose
sports courts, etc. These developments also have heightened security with multiple check points,
CCTV cameras, automated car parking, etc

REAL ESTATE SECTOR

While the residential segment witnessed strong performance, commercial office sector continues
to remain sluggish with demand not yet reaching the levels. The challenges to office spacedemand
have been the work from home trend and slowdown in global economic growth. The global
slowdown directly impacts sectors like IT/Its which is the major occupier of office space in India.
Retail real estate sector though, is back to full swing with consumption recovering beyond pre-
pandemic levels and should continue the momentum.

RESIDENTIAL REAL ESTATE MARKET

The residential market has sustained the momentum seen in the latter half of fiscal 2023. The
demand is driven by healthy economic recovery, healthy affordability compared to historic levels
and other favorable macro economic factors. The industry though faced headwinds of steep rise in
raw material costs, consumer inflation and a sharp increase in borrowing costs.

Heightened savings, relatively little income disruption in the mid and high- income categories and
a comparatively strong economic growth outlook have sustained demand in the Indian residential
market.

However, all markets except Mumbai, are recorded to be well below the threshold of comfortable
affordability of 50%, a level exceeding which banks rarely underwrite a home-loan. Mumbai was
the only city that recorded a higher than threshold affordability ratio at 53%, although it has
improved the most since CY 2010. The affordability had increased dramatically since CY2015 due
to declining interest rates. An EMI/Income ratio of over 50% is considered unaffordable according
to the matrix and most cities had witnessed a dramatic increase in affordability in this period due
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to decadal low interest rates and decline in home prices. While the trend has reversed, the
affordability continues to remain better than historic levels.

Healthy absorption in residential units coupled with rise in input costs led to an increase in prices
in many micro markets. Across the 4 major markets of NCR, MMR, Bengaluru and Pune, the prices
have increased by 7%on average in CY23. If this significant sales velocity is sustained in residential
realty, the upward price revision may continue, as the median home loan rates have still not
breached the pre pandemic levels.

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

Listed on Metropolitian Stock Exchange of India( MSEI) is already engaged with the project of the
Company named Sarvome by Shree Homes and the other project named Gokulam, the project sarvome
is being carried under the Affordable Housing Policy, Our Buildings are distinguished by their size and
scale, accessibility to mass transportation, high entry barriers for new supply and robust rental
growth rates.

ECONOMY AND INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
Indian Macro-economy Review

According to the Economic Survey - 2023, after posting a growth of -6.6% in FY 2020-21 and
rebounding strongly to deliver an 8.7% increase in GDP (at constant prices) in FY 2021-22, the
economy is expected to grow at a robust 7% (in real terms) for the year ending March 2023.

The Survey revealed that India's economic growth in FY 2022-23 was driven by private consumption
and capital formation and these two factors helped generate employment Another positive trend that
the Economic Survey highlighted was the robust recovery in the service industry, which is also visible
in people spending on contact-based services such as restaurants, hotels shopping malls and cinemas.
This reflects the fact that consumers have moved past the fear of contagion. It also pointed out that
migrant workers have returned to cities to work at construction sites, further endorsing the trend that
the pandemic is behind us.

All this has led to a considerable decline in housing market inventory and stronger corporate balance
sheets. Better capitalization of public sector banks has resulted in an increase in the credit supply and
better credit flows to MSMEs and individuals.

The Survey cautions that although the rupee is performing better than most other currencies, it still
faces the challenge of depreciation, with the likelihood of further increases in policy rates by the US
Fed. The widening of the current account deficit may also continue as global commodity prices remain
elevated and the growth momentum of the Indian economy remains strong. The loss of export
stimulus may occur due to the slowdown in global growth and shrinking trade, which reduces the
overall market size in the latter half of the current year.

Looking ahead, the survey projects a baseline GDP growth of 6.5% in real terms in FY2024. The
projection is broadly comparable to the estimates provided by multilateral agencies such as the World
Bank, the IMF, the ABD, and by the RBI domestically. The actual outcome for real GDP growth will
probably lie in the range of 6.0% to 6.8%, depending on the trajectory of economic and political
developments globall
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Your Company continues to capitalize on the market opportunities by leveraging its key
strengths.These include:
1. Brand Reputation: Enjoys higher recall and influences the buying decision of the
customer.Strong customer connects further results in higher premium realizations.

2. Execution: Possesses a successful track record of quality execution of projects with
contemporary architecture.

3. Cash flows: Has built a business model that ensures tremendous cash flows from their
operations and developed properties ensuring a steady cash flow even during the adverse
business cycles.

4. Significant leveraging opportunity: Follows conservative debt practice coupled with
enough cash balance which provides a significant leveraging opportunity for further
expansions.

5. Outsourcing: Operates an outsourcing model of appointing renowned
architects/contractors that allows scalability and emphasizes contemporary design and
quality construction - a key factor of success.

6. Transparency: Follows a strong culture of corporate governance and ensures transparency
andhigh levels of business ethics.

7. Highly qualified execution team: Employs experienced, capable and highly qualified design
and project management teams who oversee and execute all aspects of project
development.

OPPORTUNITIES

As India awaits policy reforms to pick up speed, your Company firmly believes that the demand
for Real Estate in a country like India should remain strong in the medium to long term. Your
Company’s well accepted brand, contemporary architecture, well designed projects in strategic
locations, strong balance sheet and stable financial performance even in testing times make it a
preferred choice for customers and shareholders. Your Company is ideally placed to further
strengthen its development potential by acquiring new land parcels.

CHALLENGES

While the management of your Company is confident of creating and exploiting the
opportunities, italso finds the following challenges:

e Unanticipated delays in project approvals;

e Availability of accomplished and trained labour force;

e Increased cost of manpower;

e Rising cost of construction lead by increase in commodity prices;

e Growth in auxiliary infrastructure facilities; and

e Over regulated environment.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The business paradigm is continuously shifting owing to changes in customer expectations, regulatory
updates, and volatility in the economic environment. Our ability to create sustainable value in this
environment is dependent on recognizing and effectively addressing key risks that impact the
business. The Board of Directors have formed a risk management policy to frame, implement and
monitor the risk management framework. The Committee is responsible for monitoring and
reviewing the risk management plan and ensuring its effectiveness.

The major business and process risks are identified from time to time by the business and functional
heads. The Board of Directors have devised roles and responsibilities of the Committee, which are in
keeping with REIT Regulations and to ensure that the whole process of risk management is well
coordinated and carried out as per the risk management framework.

Brookfield India REIT has been prudent in pre-empting the potential risks, which can pose a challenge
to the Company through its comprehensive risk management and mitigation strategy enabling it to
withstand and navigate challenges.

Several management and leadership team members including Board of Directors periodically review
the risk management policies and systems to incorporate any changes in the risk profile due to
changes in the external environment and strategic priorities. The Board of Directors and the
Committees of the Manager is assisted by risk management team in monitoring

the risk profile and effectiveness of mitigation plans to manage the identified business risks. The major
risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating
actions on a continuing basis.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

Brookfield India REIT has a well-established internal control system to manage business operations,
financial reporting and other compliance needs. The Manager reviews the design, implementation and
ongoing monitoring of internal financial controls for efficient business operations, including
adherence with policies and procedures, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information.

The business performance vis-a-vis plan is monitored periodically, and regular internal audits are
performed to ensure sustenance of the internal control environment.

The Manager has a robust and well-embedded system of internal controls. The Internal Audit function
provides

assurance to the Audit Committee regarding the adequacy and efficacy of internal controls, advises
management on the changing controls landscape and helps anticipate and mitigate emerging risks.
The internal audit plan focuses on critical risks that matter and is aligned with the business objectives.
Progress to plan and key findings are reviewed by the Audit Committee each quarter. Further, the
Audit Committee also monitors the status of management actions following the internal audit reviews.
The Manager's focus continues to incorporate embedding technologies to strengthen internal control
environment

OUTLOOK

The commercial real estate market is linked to the economic development of the nation. With the
Indian economy being one of the fastest growing large economies in the world, we expect demand for
commercial real estate to remain buoyant. The micro markets of Gurugram, Noida, Mumbai and
Kolkata are likely to witness a scenario of demand outstripping supply over the coming years, thus
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providing occupancy gains to players.

The high-quality assets of Brookfield India REIT have consistently accounted for a disproportionate
share of the total net absorption in these micro-markets and are well- positioned to gain from an
uptick in demand.

Occupiers are accelerating their back-to-office programs, and we have seen a significant
improvement in the physical occupancies across our campuses. This has led to several of our tenants
renewing and even expanding their presence in our campuses. As occupiers in the technology sector
return to offices, they will need to accommodate the increase in headcount of 30-40% that has
materialized over the last few years, which will only lead to a further increase in space take-up at our
assets.

KEY FINANCIAL RATI

In accordance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements 2018) (Amendment)
Regulations 2018, the Company is required to give details of significant changes (Change of 25%
or more as compared to the immediately previous financial year) in key sector specific financial
ratios.

(All amounts in Rupees Millions, unless otherwise stated)

RATIOS 2024 2023 DEFINITIONS REMARKS
Debt service | 0.07 0.06 Debt service coverage= | Refer Point (i)
coverage ratio Earning for Debt
(in times) Service/Debt Service
Return on | 512% 511.08% | Return on Equity ratio= | Refer Point (ii)
Equity ratio Profit for the year less
(in %) Preference Dividend (if

any)/Average total Equity
Net Profit | 0.18 0.16 Net Profit Ratio= Profit for | Refer Point (iii)
Ratio (in %) the Year/Revenue from

Operations
Return on | 0.57 0.55 Return on Capital | Refer Point (iv)
Capital Employed= Profit before
Employed Tax and Finance
(in %) Costs/Capital Employed

i. The Company has taken loan during the year.

ii.  During the year, the Company has account for Expenditure on Group Housing Project.
iii.  During the year, the Company has Recognized revenue on Group Housing Project.
iv.  During the year, the Company has made profit
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT
To the Members of Jotindea Infrastructura Limited
Rapart on the Audit of the Ind AS Financlal Stataments

Qualifiad Opinlon

We have audited the financial statemants of Jotlndra Infrastructure Limited (Formely
Known As Jatindra Steal And Tubes Limitad] ("the Company*), which comprise the
balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the statement of Profit and Loss (Including Cther
Comprahansive Income) (induding the statement ¢f changes In aquity], and statement of
zash Flows far the yaar then ended, and notes to the financial statemeants, including &
summary of slgnificant accounting policies and other explanatory infarmatian,

In our opinign and to the best of sur information and acgording to the explanations glven
te uc, and subect to tha matters as described In the Basis of Qualtified Opinlon,
the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Staternents give the informatien requlved by the
Companias Ack, 2013 (Cthe Act") in the manner so raqaired and glve a true and falr
wiew in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescdbad undar sectlon 133
of the Act read with the Companles [Indlan Accoubnting Standards) Fules, 2015, as
amended, (*Ind AS™ and other accounting principles genarally accepted in India, of the
state of affaits of the Company as at March 31, 2024, the profit and total comprehenslve
Income, changes in equlty and Its cash Aowres for the year ended on that date.

Baslz of Qualifiad Opinlon

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specifisd
under sectlen 143(10) of the Companles Act, 2013, Our responsibliides under those
Skandards are further described in the Auditor's Respensibilities for the Audit of the
Finanglal Statemants section of our repott. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics Issued by the Insbtute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical reguirements that are relevant to our audlt of the finanaal
statements under the provislons of the Companles Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical respensibilities in accordance with these
requitemants and the Code of Ethics, e belleve that the audit evldence we have obtainad
i= sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion except in the following cases:

A) Artentlon is drawn E0 fact that Hon'hle Supremea Court of India vide its
order datad 06th Spatambar 2018 has directed the Foransic Audit of the
Cormpany. Consequent to the report of the forensic awditor, undartaken as
per the direction of the Hon'be Supreme Court of Indla to look into
transactions hatwaen Amrapali group of companies and Suréela group of
companies. The Hon'ble Supreme Court vide order dated 14" Detaber'2019
£ furthear Order dated 02" Decembar'2019 has diractad to M/s Jotindra
Steel 8 Tubes Ltd, Mauria Udyog Ltd including associated companles and
Diractors wiz Mr. Havnest Kumar Suraka and Hr Akhll Kumar Sureka to
deposzit Rs. 167 Cr.
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In response Lo the arder of tha Hon'ble Supreme Court; it has flled gp
application on 09% Dacember'2019 befare tha Han'bla Supreme Court gy
accapt the title-deeds of immavahle praperties belonging to Sureka family
members and associate companles {based on the latest valuatlon report)
warth amaunking to Rs. 208.31 Crores and after raducing the incumbency
amaunt of Rs. 39.34 Croves balance value of properties work out to Rs.
168.97 Cr. Directors of the Company have filed interlocutory application
for recalling the Order Dated 23.07.2019 qua tha applicants, bafors
Hon'hle Supreme Court and the same |5 =tlll panding. However, the
managament of the company is of oplnlon, there Is na specific llabllity
agalnst the company.

In the above context, Enforcemeant DHrectorate has under undertaken
anquiry of verification of allaged bogus transactions of TMT supplies to
Mfs Amrapali Group and ls of the opinion that Jotindra Infrastructure
Limited {formariy mown as Jotindra Steal and Tubes Limited) has assisted
in slphoning of funds by providing accommodation entries to the tune of
Rs. 7.11 Crore and has obtalned proceads of crime to the tuna of R=, 28
Lakhs during the ralevant perlod. The cornpany is contasting that no such
Kabllity will accrue on the company on the ahove observation of Special
Court PMLA and thus has pat provided for the same in the hooks of
Secounts,

B) Attention is drawn on the application fied by State Bank of Indla against
M/s (Ozona GSP Infratech before Ld. Debt Recavery Tribunal IE, Hew Delhl,
for default in payment of lpans and has claimed the company as a
corparate guarantor amounting to Rs, 21.46 Cr. Tha company has filed a
counter claim sgainst State Bank of Indla and has denied any llabllity in

respact of above, Accordingly, no provision has hean made in books of
accounts.

Our opinlon is modified in respect of above matters.
Emphasls of Matter

Reference is drawn to Mote o, 51 of the financlal statements, wherein, the company |s
vet to comply with Fule 11{q) of the Companies (Audit and Auditars) Rules, 2014, with
respect to the use of acocounting seftware that incudes a Feature for recording an aodit
trail fedit leg), and cperational throughout the vear for all transactions. Bacsed on our
examinatinn which included test checks, the company |s yet to implement the Audit Trail
{edlt log) Feature during the financial year. As Informed to us, the company 15 in the
process of implementing the necessary changes in its acceunting seftwate and believes
that non-implementation of the audit trail {edit log} feature has no Impact on the finandial
statement for the year, We are unable te comrment on the audit trail Feature of the
accounting soffware, however, based on our examination of bonks of accounts on test
rheck basls we are of the opinion that there iz no materlal impact on the finandgial
statements of the carmpany,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit makters are those matters that, n our professional judgment, wers of most
significance In aur audlt of the financial statements of the currett petind. These mat




Other Information - Board of Directors” Report

The Company's Board of Directors i5 respensibte for the preparation and presentation of
Its raport {hergin after ¢alled as "Board Report™) which comprises varlous InformMation
requlred under sectlon 1 34{3) of the Companies Act 2013 but does nat inzlude the flnanclal
skatemnents and our auditor's report therson,

Qur apinion on the fAinancial skatements does aot cover the Board Report and we do nok
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, tur responsibllity 15 to read the
Board Report and in doing 30, consider whathar the Board Rapott 1s materially Inconslstent
wlith the fnanclal statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Till date we have nothing ta repart in this regard,

pazponsihilitias of Managemant and Tho=a Charged with Govermance for the
Financial Statamants

The Company's Board of Directers is respensible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Companles Act, 2013 ("the Act™] with respect to the preparation of these standaloneg
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial pasiticn, Anancial
perfarmance, (changes In equity) and cash Aaws of the Company in accordance with the
accountdng princlples generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards
specifled under section 133 of the Act. This responsibillty also Includes malntenance of
adequate accounting recards in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the asset: of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
lrreqularitles; selection and applicaton of approprlate accounting policies; making
judgrments and estimates that arg reasonable and prudent; and deslgn, Implementation
and malntenance of adequate internal Ananclal contraols, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the acouracy and complsteness of the accaunting recards, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial steternents that glve a true and fair view and
are free frem material misstatemant, whether due to fraud or 2mer.

In preparing the financlal statemants, the Board of Directors |s responsible For assessing
the Company's ability to continue as 3 going concern, disciosing, as applicable, makters
related to quing concam and Uging the going tandern basls of acoounting unless the Board
of Olrectors elther intends to liguidate the Company or bo cease operations, or has no
realistic altermative but to do 50,

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for oversealng the cempany’s financial
reporting process.

Auditar's Responsibllities for the Aadit of the Flnancial Statameants

Our ohijectives are bt obtain reascnable azsurance about whether the financlal statements
a% a whole are free from materlal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that indudes gur opinion. Feasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but Is not a quarantee that an audit conducked In accordance with SAs will
always detect & material misstatemeant when it axists, Misstatements can arise from fraud
or errot and are ¢onsiderad materlal If, Individually or In the aggregate, they could

thess finandcal statements.




as part of an audit |n accordance with SAs, we exerdse professional judament and
maintaln profasslonal skepticism throughout the audlt. We also:-

« Jdentify and assecs the risks of material misstatement of the financlal statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perferm audit procedures respensive o
those risks, and obtain audlt evidence that is suffident and appropriate (o provide
a basis far our opinlon, The risk of not detacting a matarial misstatament resulting
from fraud s higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invalwe
coflesion, forgery, intentlonal emisslens, misrepresenkations, af the override of
intermal control.

« Obtain an understanding of intermal contral relevant to the audit in order W deslgn
audit procedures that are appropriate In the drcumstances. Under sectlon 143(3)(0)
of the Companles Act, 2013, we are also responsible for @xpressing our opinicty o0
whether the company has adequate intemal Ananclal controls system in place and
the operating effectivengss of such controls.

+ Ewaluata the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of managemeant’'s use of the going concem basis
of accounting and, based an the audit evidence oblkained, whether 2 matetial
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may st significant doubt
on the Company's ability te continue as a golng concern, If we conclude that &
materlal uncertainty exists, we are required L3 draw attentlon in our auditor's report
to the related disdasures In the financlal statements or, if such disclosures are
Inadequate, bo modIfy cur opinion, Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence
cbtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, fubure events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue a5 a golng Loncern,

« Evaluate the overall precentatian, structure and content of the financial statements,
Including the disclosures, and whather the financial statements represent the
underying transactions and eyants In a mannar that achieyves fair presentation.

e sormmunizate with those charged with governance regarding, amang other matters,
the planned scope and tming of the audit and sgnificant audit Andings, including any
significant deficigncies in Intzrnal contral that wa Identdfy during our audit,

We alsn provida thosa charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding Independence, and to communicate with
them all relatianzhips and ather matters that may reasonably be thought ko bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safequards. ]




Report on Othar Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. A&s required by the Companies {Auditar's Report) Order, 2020 {"the Crder™); |¢sigeg
by the Central Gavernment of Indla in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of
the Companles Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A", statement ¢ the matters
speclfied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Crder, to the extant applicable.

2. As required by Sectlon 143{3} of the Act, we report that:

2)

k)

d)

g}

f}

9)

e have sought and cbtained all the information and axplanations which to the
best of ocur knowledge and belief were necassary for the purpeses of our audit,

I our gpinlon, proper books of accownt as required by law have been kept by
the Company 5o far as it appears fram our examination of those books, except
for the matters as staked in tha EOM paragraph.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, (the Statemant of Changes
in Equiky} antd Lhe Cash Fiow Statement deall with by this Report are In
agreement with the boolks of acoounL.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalane fAnancial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specifled under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Gn the basis of the written representations recelved from the directors as on
March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
iz dizqualiiied as on March 31, 2024 from baing appolnted as a director in terms
of Section 164({2] of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the Intemnal financlal controls over financlal
reporting of the Company and the operating effedtiveness of such controls, refer
tn our saparate Repart in “Annexure B

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companizs {Audlt and Auditars) Pules, 2014, In
our opinian and Yo the bect of eur Informabon and according to the explanatons
alwen b us:
l. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending lidgations on its finanaial
position in iks firanclal statemants;

N. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
aceounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, If any, on long-term
contracts including derlvative contracts;

ili. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, reguired to be ransferred,
to the Investor Education ardd Protection Fund by the Company.

Iv. @) The management has reprezentad that, to the best of it's knowledgs and




barrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of fundsy 4y
the campany o or In any other person(z) or antlty{les), including foreign
enties [*Intermediaries®), with the understanding, whether recordad
writing or otherwisa, that the Intermediary shall:

« whether, directy ar indirectly lend or Invest In other persons or entites
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
{"ldmate Beneficlaries") or

« prowlde any guarantee, security or the llke an behalf of tha Ulbdmate
Beneficiaries.

b} The management has represented, that, bo the best of it's knowledge and
belief, no funds have baen recefved by the company from any persenis) or
entity(les), Including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”}, with the
understanding, whether recarded In writing or othenwise, that the company
shall:

& whether, diracthy ar indirectly, lend or invest in ather persons or entitles
ldentlfled In any manner whatzeever by or on behalf of the Funding
Farty ("Ultirnate Baneficlares™ or

« provide any gquarantee, sacurlty or the like on behalf of the Ultimats
Benaflciarles; and

v. Mo dividend has been dedared or paid by the Company during the year,

h) The medlficatlons relating to the maintenanse of accounts and other matters
connected therewith are as ctated In the ECM paragraph "Based on our
axarnlnation which induded test checks, the company Is yat to implement the
Audit Trail (edit log) featurz durlng the financial year. As infenmed to us, the
company |5 in the procass of implementing the necescary changes in its
arcounting software and belizves that non-Implementation of the aud|t trall (edit
log ) feature has no impact on the financial statement for the year. We are unable
to cormment on the audit trail Feature of the accounting software, however, based
an our examination af baoks of accounts on test check basis we ara of the opinlon
that thera |s no materlal Impact on the financlal statements of the company."
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“Annexure A" to the Independent Auditors” Report

(Referred to in point 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Raquirements’ section of our raport of aven date)

(I} ay The Company has maintainged proper records showing full pacticulars, including
quanttative details and situation of Froparty, Flant and Equipment and cagital
work=In-prograss.,

by The Property, Flant and Egquipment have been physically werifigd by the
rnanzagement durlng the year which, in our aplnian, Is reasonable having regard
to the size of the cormpany and nature of jts businass, As inform o> Us, no
material discrepancies were notleed by management on such verlficatian,

o) Based on the examinatlon of the registered sale deed [ transfer deed [
conveyance deed pravided to us, we report that, the title deeds of all the
immowable properties are held in the nameg of tha company.

d) The Company has not revatued any of its property, plant and equipment during
the vear.

2] MNa proceadinigs have been initiated guring the year or are pending against the
Company ac at March 31, 2024 for holding any benaml property under the
Eenami Transactians {Prohibition) Act, 1983 (as amended in 2016} and rules
made thersunder.

(i) In respact of the Company’s inventory:

a) The inventorles ware physlcally verifled during the year by the Managetmant
at reasonable intervals. In our opinloh and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the foverage and procedure of such verification by
the Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its operations. The inventory has baen physically verified and

certiflad durlng the yaar by the management. In gur oplnloan, the frequency
of werification is a reasonable.

bl According to the information and explanatlons given to us and on the basis of
aur examlnatlon of tha records of the Company, the Company has not been
sanctionzd any working capital limlts in excess of five crore rupees In
aggregate from banks and finanglal Institutlons on the basis of securlty of
rurrant assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3{iiy(b) of
the Ordar 15 not applicable to the Company.

{lIhAccarding to the information and explanations glven to us and on the basis of qur
examlnatlon of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
investrments, provided quarantes or sacurlty or granted any advancas in the nature
of loans, secured or unsacurad, ta companles, firms, limited [ability partnerships
or any other parties during the year, The Company has granted laans and advances
tn companles, detalls of which is stated in sub-clause (a) below. The Company has
made Imvestments during the year. The Company has nob granted any loans,
secyured or unsecured, to firms or [Imited liability partnerships ﬁ’f{*—_’t‘! i

A,



{lv]

a)

b)

S

d)

f)

Based an the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has provided loans and advances tp
any other entity as below:

Particulars Amaunt (Rs. In INR)
To relaled parly (net of Provision} | ¥3,87.15,79%
To Othars 21,14,01,485

The company has given corperate guarantes of s, 35.00 Crores to State Bank
of Indla (Formely Known as State Bank of Patiala), for the lean avalled by M/fc
Dzene GSP Infratech, a flem In which the Company holds 25% of the Capita,
and the company has filed necessary form MGT-14 on 16.02.2016 and also
charge has been filed with ROC on 14.09.2017 {Efective date 18.01.2016). It
is stated that na any conclderation has been received by the Company either
by way of any commission, brokerage Fees or any other form for the issuance
of the above Corporate Guarantee in terms of the REI Mastar Circular Mo,
RBL/2004-05/65, DBOD No. Dir.BC,153/13.03.00/2004-05 Cated 23.07.2004,

According to the infermnation and explanatiens given to us and based on the
audit procedures conducted by us, we are of the opinlon that the terms and

condltlons of the lpans given are, primafacie, not prejudiclal b the Interest of
the Compainy.

Actarding to the infarmation and explanatlons given to us and on the basis of
aur examinatien of the records of the Company, In the case of loans given, the
repayment of principal and payment of interest haz been stipulatad, howewvar
the repayments or receipts are not regular.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basls of
our examination of the records of the Company, there are pvardus amounts
which are overdua for mora than ninety days in respect of loans glven.

According to the infermation and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examlnation of the records of the Company, there is no loan given falling
due during the year, which has been renewed or extanded or fresh loans given
to settle the overduss of existing [sans given o the same party.

According to the information and explanations given te us and on the basis of
ouy examlnatlon of the records of the Company, the Company bas not glven
any loans alther repavable an demand or without specifying any Erms ar
period of repaymant,

Tha Company has complled with the provislons of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 n recpect of loans granted, investments made and
guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.




fw) Based on ogr scratiny of the company's records and acoerding to the Informabion
and explanaticns given t¢ L=, in our oplrian, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public and hence the directives |ssued by the Resarve Bank of
Indla and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 ar any ather relevant provisions of
the Act and the Companles (Acceptance of Deposit) Pules, 2015 with regard bo
the deposits accepted from the publlc are not applicable. Aocardingly, clause 3(v)
of the Order is not applicable,

(viy  The malntenance af cost records has been specified by the Central Government
under Sactlon 148(1] of the Companies Act, 2013, We have broadly reviewed the
books of account maintained by the Company purcuant to the Companigs {Cost
Records and Awdit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central
Govermment for malntenance of oost records under Sectlon 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prAama facie, the prescribed cost
racards have been made and maintaingd by the Company. We have, howeyer,
not made a detailed exarmination of the oost records with a vigw o determine
whether they are accurate or complete,

fwii} a) According to the Information and explapabions glven to us, the company ix
generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues with appropriate
authorities including Provident Fund, Employaes” Stare Insurance, Income Tax,
Custam douty, Good and Service tax, Professional lax and any ather statutory dies
applicable bo it.

According to the information and explanatizns ghvan to us, no undisputed amounts
pavablz in respect of Goods and Services Tax, Provident fund, Emplayees” Stats
Inzurance, Incorne-Tax, Duby of Customs, Cess and other statutory duss were in
arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a perloed of more than six moenths from the date
they became payabla except amount of Rs, %,52,242/- rzlating to Salec tax.

b Cekaile of stakutory duas as referred to in dauss vii (a7 abeve, which have not
been deposited as an 31st March, 2024 on account of disputes are glven balow:

S.Np. | Name ofthe | Matureof | Porum whers disputeIs | Perlod to | Taotal

Statuta du=y pending which the
amount
' relates
1 Incame Tax Income Tax | CIT (&) against Penalty 2011-12 o 45 168
| At 1961 1 | arder ufs 274(11(c) , |~
2 | Inoeme Tax Income Tax | CIT (A] against Penalty 2012-13 2,01, 390
| Act, 1361 . | order Wi 2711} | |
3 | Income Tax Incame Tax ITAT agalnst short credt of | 201E-17 53, 74,655 |
| Acti86L | | TOS {order ufs 143(31] | | _
4 | Income Tax Income Tax, | ITAT against shart credit of Z017-18  940,5%,9910
| Act, 1961 _ | TDS [Order u/s 143{31] | ,
5 | Tncome Tax Income Tax | TTAT 1 &alnst shiott credit of 2018-19 2, 08658
Ack 1561 TOS [Crder ufs 143(3}

(vlii} Aceording to the Infarmation and explanabions given e us and an the Hacls of our
exarninatien of the records of the Company, the Cormpany has net surrandered or
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecotded as income in the books of
acoount, in the kax assassments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as Income during

_—

the vear.




{lx} a) 1n our opinion and according to the infermation and explanations glven to ys,
compary has been defaulted [n the payment of dues to the bankers as specifisd
I the Mate 19 of the Financal Statements. The company had besn categorized
as NP by SIDABI in the previous yzar and the ¢ompaty hats satded all loang of
SIDEI during that year.

by According to the Information and explanatiens given to s and an the basis of
our examination of the records of the Cormpany, the Company has not bean
declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or flinancial institution or govemmment
or government authorty.

c) hocording to the information and exwplanatlons given to us by the
management, The Cormpany has not taken any tarm loan during the year and
therg are ng unptilised term loans at the beginning of the year and hance,
raporting under clause {ix)(c) of the Qrder is not applicable,

d} According to the information and explanatlons glvan to us and on an oweral|
examimatlen of the balance sheet of the Company, we repert that M9 funds
hawve bean ralsed on short-term basis by the Company, Accordingly, clause
3(ix)(d} of the QOrder is not applicable.

£} Accarding to the infotmation and explanations given to ug and of an averall
gxaminaticn of the financial statements of the Company, we raport that the
Company has not taken any funds from any antlty or person on acceunt of or
to meet the oblligatlons of ite subsidiaries as defined under the Companies
Act, 2013, Accordingly, clauss 2{ix)(e) of the Order 1= not applicae.

fy According to the information and explanations given ko us and procedures
parformed by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the
yoar on the pledge of securities held in ks subsidiares as defined under the
Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, dause 3(ix)(F) of the CQrder Is not
applicable.

(%] a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the infermation and
explanations ghwen by the management, the company has not raised moneys by
way of Inltlal public offer or further public offer including debt instrurments,
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (%) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.

b} According to tha informatlen and explanatlons glven to us and on the basis of
our axamination of the recards of the Company, The Company has not made any
preferential allotment or pAvate placement ¢f sharas or fully or partly convertlble

debenturazs durlng the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x3(b) of the Order is no
applicable,

(x1y a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and
axplanations glvan by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company
or 2 the campany by ite officers or employess has baen notlced or repo
during the year.




(i)

{xiii}

{uiv}

(]

{xevl)

[evli)

k) Aceerdlng to the information and explanations given to us, no report Under
sub-section {12) of Sectlon 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been Aled by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 ac prescrlbed under Rule 13 of Companles {Audit gnd
Audlitors) Pules, 2014 with the Central Govermment.

t} As reprecentad to us by the Management, there were no whistle Dlowar
complaints received by the Company durling the yeat and Up ta the date of thg
reportt.

Actarding bt the infarmatlon and explanations given to ug, the Company is rot a
Midhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3{xii) of the Order 15 not applicable.

Tn o gplnian and according to the information and explanatlons given to us, the
transactions with related partles are In compliance with Sections 177 and 183 of
the Companies Act, 2013, wherz applicable, and the details of the related party
tramsactions have been disclosed in the standalene fnanclal statements as
required by the appllcabla Indlan Accounting Standards.

a% Based on information and explanatlons provided to us and our audit
procedures, in eur opinien, the Company has an intemal audit system
commensurate with tha size and nature of its business.

b We have conslderad, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issuad
to the Company during the year and till date, in detepmining the nature, tirming
and extent of cur audit procedures,

In our opinlon and acoording te the information and explanations given o us, the
Company has not enterad into any non-cash transactlons with its dimedtors or
persons connected to lts directors and hence, provislons of Sactlon 192 of the
Companles Act, 2013 are not applicable bo the Company.

al The Company is not required to be raglstered under Section 45-IA af the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvli(a), (b} and () of the
Crder Is not applicable.

b) According te the infermation and explanations provided bo us during the courca
of audit, the Group does net have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of
clause 30xwl)(d] are not applicable.

The Company has net incurred cash lesses in the current and in the immedlately
preceding fnancial year.

fxwiil] There has bzen no reglgnation of the statutory auditors during the wyear.

(i)

Accordingly, clause 3(xviit) of the Crder 2 not applicabie.

Accarding £o the Informatlon and explanations given to us and ¢n the basls of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of finandcial aseels and
payment of financial liabillties, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
basad on our examination of the evidents supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attentlon, which causes us b belleve that any mate




uncertalnty exlsts as on the date of the audlt report that the Company s et
capable of maeting its llabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall dus within a perlod of one year from the balance sheet dabe. e,
however, state that this Is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Campany. We further skate that our reporting Is based un Lhe Facts up to the date
of the audlt report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falfing due withn a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due,

fxx] In our epinlon and according to the Infarmation and explanations given to us,
there is no unspent amount under sub-section (5] of Section 135 of the Act
pursuant to any project. Accerdingly, dause 3fxx)(a) and 3{xx)(b) of the Order Is
not applicable.

For HU M 5 & Associabes
Chartared Accountants
Flrm's Registration Mo, G222 300N
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"Annexure 8" to the Independant Auditors” Report

{Referred to in point 2(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ saction of our report to the membears of Jatindea Steel and Tubes
Limited of even date}

Report on the Intemal Flnanclal Coantrols Over Financial Reporting under Clayge
[i) of sub-section 3 of Saction 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 (TAct")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Jotindra Steel
and Tubes Limited (*the Company®) as of March 31, 2024 [n conjunctlon with our audit of
the standalone finandal staterments of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is respanslble for establishing and maintaining
interpal financial controls based on the Intermal contral owver financlal reporting criters
actabllshed by the Company considering the essentlal components of intemal control
stated in the Guidanca Noke an Audit of Intarmal Financlal Controls Ovear Finanslal Reporting
izsued by the lnstibute of Chartered Accountanks of Indla. Thetse responsidliies include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequata Internal financial conkréls that
ware sperating effectively for ansuring the ordery and efficient conduct af Its business,
the safeguarding of its assets, the preventlon and detectlon of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completensse of the accounting records, and the timely preparatlon of
rellable financlal information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our respansihility iz to express an aplnlon on the Internal financial controls aver nanglal
raporting of the Company based on our sudit. We cenducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance MNete on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Ower Financial Peporting {the
‘Guidance Mote™t lssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Sectlon 143{10) of the Companiss Ak, 2013, to
the axtent appilcable to an aodlt of intemal financial controls, Thase Standards and the
Guidance Moke require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
aud(t ta obtaln reasoenable ascurance about whether adegquate internal financlal controls
over fimanclal reporting was established and maintalned and IFf such controls opersted
effectively in all materal respects.

Cur audit Invelves performing procedures to obtaln audlt evidence about the adequacy of
the Intetnal flnanclal controls system over finandial repotting and thelr operating
effectiveness. Qur audit of internal Anancial controls over finandal reporting included
cbtaining an understanding of Intamal Ainanclat controls over Ainancial reporting, assassing
the rlsk that @ materlal weakness exists, and testing and avaluating the deslgn and
operating effectiveness ¢f internal contral based on the assassed risk,

The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of
the rleks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
Errar.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, Is sufflclent and appropriats to
provide a hacis far our audlt opinion on the Company's internal financial eantrels system

over financial reporting, ﬁ -
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Meaning of Internal Financlal Controls over Financial Reparting

A company’s Interna! financia! contrel over financial reporting Is @ process designed o
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of finandal reparting and the
preparation of flnandal staternents for external purpoges n accordance with generally
accepted acoounting principles, A company’s internal financia! contral over fAnancial
reporting intludes those polices and procedures that (1) pertaln o the maintanance of
records that, In raasonable detail, accurately amd faldy reflect the transacbons and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable ASSurance that
transactions are recorded as necassary bt parmit preparatien of lnandal statements |n
accordance with generally accepted acoounting principles, and that receipts and
gxpendleres of the company are being made enly in accordance with authorizations of
the managemant and directors of the company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance
recarding prevantion or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could hawve a material effect on the Anancial statéments.

Limlitatlons of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal flnancial controls aver financial reparting,
inclading the pogssibility of collusion or knproper management overmide of controls, matarial
rlsstatements due to ermor or fraud rmay oocur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any svaluation of the Internal Ananclal controls over financial reparting to future periods
arg suhjact to the risk that the internal financial centrel ower financial reporting may
becoeme inadequate bacause of changes n condiions, or that the degree of compllance
with the policles or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinlon

In our opinion, to the best of our information and accordlng to the explanations given to
ez, the Campany has, in all material respects, an adequate Intemal finandal controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financlal controls over financial reparting
wers operating effactlvaly &8s at March 31, 2024, bass=d on the Ihtérnal control ower
financlal reporting criteria eskablished by the Company <onsldering the essential
gernponents of internal control stated In the Guidance Mote on Audlt of Internal Flnandcial

Controls Over Flnanclal Reporting issued by the Instltute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

ForH U M S & Assockates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Mo, 022230N
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CA HUMS & ASSOCIATES

'TEEE LR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Mambers of Jotindea Infrastructure Limitad
Raport on the Audit of tha Consolidated Financlal Statemants

Qualified Opinlon

Wwe Rave audited the Consolidated Flnandal Staterments of Jotindra Infrastructure
Limitad (Formely Known as Jotindra Steel And Tubes Limited]) ("the Company ™), its
cubsidiaries and its associates which comprise the Conselidated Balance Sheet a5 at March
31, 2024, and the Consolidated Statement of Proflt and Loss Including Other
Comprehensive Income and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and tha
Consclidated Statement of Changas in Equity, for the year then ended, and notes to the
Consalidated Financial Statements, Including a swmmary of significant acceunting policies
and other explanatory Information{hereinafter referred has Consolidated Financial
Staterment).

In our oplnion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, and subject to tha matters as described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion,
the aforesald Consclidated Finandal Statements give the Information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 [“the Act™ in the manner so required and glve a true and fair
view In conformity with the Indlan Accounting Skandards prescribed under section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indlan Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015, as
arnetded, (*Ind AS*) and other accounting principles generally accepted in Indla, of the
consolidated staka of affalrs of the Company, b5 subsldizaries and its assoclates as at March
31, 2024, the Consolidated Preft Including Other Cemprehensive Income and Its
Consolidated Cash Flows and Consolidated Changes in Equity for the year then endad on
that date.

Basis of Quallflad Opinion

Wa conducted our audit in accerdance with the Stendards an Audlting {SAs) specifled
under secton 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Cur responsibilitles under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolldated Financial Statetnents sectlon of our report. We are independent of the
Company, its subsldiarles and its associates In accordance with the Cede of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India togethar with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audlt of the Consolidated Financlal Statements under the
provisions of the Companles Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
cthar ethlcal responsibilities in accardance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics,
We believe that the audlt evidence we have obtalned ls sufficient and approptiate to
provide a basls far our opinlon except in the followlng cases:

A) Attantion is drawn to fact that Hon'ble Suprame Court of India vide Itz
order dated 06th Spetember' 2018 has directed the Forensic Audit of the
Campany. Consequent to tha rapart of the ferensic auditor, undertaken as
per the directlan of the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India to look into
transactlons between Amrapall group of companles- and Sureka group of
companies. The Hon'bla Supreme Caurt vide arder dated 14 October' 2019
& furthar Order dated 02" Dacamber'2019 has directed to Mfs Jotindra & 1S il?*

V5
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Stenl & Tubes Ltd, Maurla Pdyog Lid Including assoclated companies ang
Directors viz Mr. Havnset Kumar Sureka and Mr Akhil Kumar Sureka ta
deposit Rs. 167 Cr.

In response to the order of the Hon'bie Supreme Caurt, it has fllad gn
application an 09 December'2019 before the Hon'bla Suprama Court to
acceapt tha title-desds of immovable properties belonging to Sureka family
members and associate companies (based on the latest valuation report)
worth amounting to Rs. 208,31 Crores and after raducing the Incumbency
amaunt of Rs. 39,33 Crores balance value of propertias work oult to Rx,
168.97 Cr. Directors of the Company have filed interfocutory application
for recalling tha Order Dated 23.07.2019 gqua the applicants;, before
Hon'ble Supreme# Court and the same is still panding. However, the
management of the company Is of opinlon, there Is no spaciflc iability
agalnst the company.

In the above context, Enfoarceament Directorate haszs under undertaken
anguiry of verification of allagad bogus transactions of TMT supplies to
M/s Amrapali Group and is of the opinion that Jotindra Infrastructure
Limited {formerly known as Jotindra Steal and Tubes Limitad} has assisted
in slphaning of funds by providing accommodation entrigs 1o the tune of
Rs. 7.11 Crore and has obtained proceeds of crime to the tune of R5, 26
Lakhs during the refevant pered. The company Is contesting that no sach
llabllity will accrue on the company on the above sbzarvation of Spacial
Court PMLA and thus has not provided for the same in the books of
ACCOUNTS,

B) Attention ls drawn on the application flled by State Bank of India against
M/s Ozone GSP Infratech befora Ld. Dabt Recovery Tribunal 11, New Delhi,
for default in payment of loans and has clalmad the company as a
corporata guarantor amounting to Rs. 21.46 Cr.. The company has filed &
coupker ¢claim against State Bank of India and has denlad any lkablilty In
ragpect of above. Accordingly, no provision has been made in books of
accounts.

Qur oplnion is modiflad in rezspact of above matters.

Emphasls of Matter

Reference 5 drawn to Mote Mo, 15 of the financial statements, wherein, the company |s
yet to comply with Rule 11{g} of the Caompankes (Audit and Audltors) Rules, 2014, with
respect to the use of accounting software that includes a feature for recording an audit
trall {edit log], and operational throughout the year for all transactions. Basad on our
examination which Included test checks, the company s yet to implarment the Audit Trail
{edit log) feature during the financial vear. As informed bo us, the company is in the
process of mplementing the necessary changss in its accounting software and hellavas
that non-implementation of the audlt trall {edit log] feature has no Impact on the Rinancial
statement for the year. We are unable to comment on the audit trail feature of the
accounting saftware, however, based on gur examination of books of accounts on best
check basis we are of the oplnion that there is no materal impact on the financial
statements of the campany., mf
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ey Audit Matters

Key audit matters are thoze rmatters that, I our professional judgment, weare of most
significarice In our audlt of the Consolidaked Fnancial Statzments of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the contaxt of our audlk of the Consolidated Financial
Statements as a whole, and in Forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
sapatate opinlon an these matters,

ther Information - Board of DHractars” Reaport

The Company’s Board ¢f Directors |s responsible for the preparation and presentation of
its report (herein after called as “Board Repert”] which comprises various information
requlred under section 134(3) of the Companies Act 2013 but does not include the
Conselidated Finandal Statements and our auditor's repert theraon,

Our opinion ¢n the Conselldatad Financial Statements dogs not cover the Board Peport
and we do not express any form of assurance fonclusien thareon,

In connection with our audit of the Con=zolidated Finandal Statements, our respons|billty
is to read the Board Repart and In dolng so, consider wheather the Board Report s
materlally lnconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Stetements or our knewledge
obtained during the ¢ourse of cur audit or otherwlse appears bo be rmaterially micstated,

Till date we haya nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilitles of Managament and Thoze Charged with Governanca for the
Consalidatad Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directars is responelble for the matters stated in sedtion 13445)
af the Companles Act, 2013 (“the Act™ with respect to the preparation of thase
Consolidated Financial Staternents thal give 2 true and Ffair view of the consolidated
financial positlon, censolldated Anancial performance including Other Comprehenclva
Income and Consolidated Cash Flows and Consolidated Changes In Equity of the Company
and its subsidiarias and its assoclates In accordance with the accounting principlas
generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards speclfled under section
133 of the Act. This responsibllity also indudes maintenance of adequate adcounting
recards In accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguatding of tha assets of each
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregulariies; selection and
application of appropriste accounting policles; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implamentation and maintenance of adeguate
internal financial ontrols, that were aperating effectvely for ensuring the accuracy and
rompleieness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Consolidabed Financial Statements that give a true and Fair vlew and are free from
material rmisstatement, whether due ta fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated Financlal Statements, the respechive Board of Directors of
the companles included in the Conselidated Financlal Statements are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability o continug as a golng concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concemn and using the going concarn basls of actounting unless
the Board of Dlrectors either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has ne realistic alternative but to de s,

Those recpective Board of Directors of the company, its subsidlaries and its associates are
also responsible for overseeing the campany's financial reporting proceass.




Auditor's Responsibilities for the Auwdit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Sur abjectives are to pbtaln reasoneble assurance about whether the Consolidated
Financlal Statements as a whole are free from matenzl misstatement, whether due g
fraud or armar, and o issue an ayditat's report that Includes our opinlon. Peasonabls
ascurance 13 3 high leval of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducked in
accordance with 345 will always detect a matenal misstaterment when It existg,
Misstatements can sriss from fraud or error and are considersd matetial if, individoally ar
in the aggragate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
af users Eken on the basis of these Conselidated Financlal Satoments,

As part of an zudit in accordance with SAsS, we exercise profasslonal judgment and
maintain professianal skepticlem throughout the audlt. We also:-

+ Identify and assess the risks of matarial misstatement of the Consalldated Financlal
Statements, whether due o fraud or errar, deslgn and perform audit procedures
responsive to thooe rsks, and obtaln audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinicn, The risk of not detecting a materizl
mlestatement resulting Fom Fraud s higher than for one resulting from ermor, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mMisrépréeseptalions, or
the override of Internal contrgl.

+ DbkEin an vnderstanding of inkernal contrel relevant to the audit In order to design
audit procedures that arg appropriate in the circurmstances, Under sectlon 143{3)(H)
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsitle for exprassing our apinton on
whather the company has adeguate |nternal findncial controls system in place and
the operating effectveness of such controls,

« Ewvaluate the approprlateness of accounting pollcles usad and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by managermant,

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
af accounbing and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matarial
uncettalnty existe related to events or condltlons that may cast slgnificant doubt
on the Company, its subsidiarles and its associates ability bo continue as a gaing
agncerr, IF we concluds that a materlal uncertainty &xl=ts, we are required to draw
attantlon In our auditor's regort to the related disclosures in the Consclidated
Finandal Statements ar, if such disclasures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Cur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up Lo the date of our
dudltor's report. However, future events or condltlons may cause the Company and
its subsidiaries and its associates bo cease to continue as a Qoing Cconcern,

« Evaluate the overall presantation, structure and content of the Consolidatad
Fimanclal Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated
Financial Statements represant the undefying transactions and svents in a mannar
that achieves fair presantation,

# Obtain sufflcient appropriate audit evidence regarding the finandal information of AL
such entities or huslness activitles of the Company and its subsidlares ag® AR



associate company to exprass an opinian on the Consolldated Flnancial Statemenks,
of which we are tha Independent auditors, We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance ¢f tha audit of Ainandal Information of such entities
Imzluded In the Consalidatad Financlal Statements of swhich we are the independent
auditor. For the other entities included in the Consalidated Flnanclal Statemants,
which hawve been auditad by other auditors, such other auditers remain mespansible
far the diractlon, suparylslon and performance of the audits carried out by tham,
We remzin solely responsible for our audit apinlan, Our rasponsibilities in this
regard are further described In section titled 'Other Matters in this audit report.

ywa cormmunlcate with those charged with governance regarding, among othar matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audlt and significant audlt findings, including any
significant deficiencies in Internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that wa have complied
with relevart ethical requirements regarding Independence, and to communicate with
them all relationshlps and cther matters that may reasenably te thawght to bear on pur
Independence, and whare applicable, related safequards,

Other Mattar

1. The Concolidated Flnanclal statements includes the financial statemants of S
Subsldiaries and 2 associates financal stakements;

2. Reference 15 drawn to Quallfication reported in subsidiaries reports:

Sarvomea Infrastructure Projacts Private Limited

(1] Forenslc audit has been conducted on the company in the case of Amrapali
Group and the foransic auditor has osbserved recavery of Rs. 15.73 Crore From
the company.

(i) Hon'able Suprerme Court has raiged recoveries from that SBureka Group
companies in the Amrapall case. However the matter is still subjudics. The
Company has outskanding balaree of B, 1,14,67,314f- payable to one of the
group companies of Amrapall. Cutstanding Balance pertains to the Security
deposlt of Construction Equipments of Holding Company approximating Lo Rs
6.77 Crores that are lying at the Project Slte. Az such we are unable to
determine the llabllity as on date in respect of this case. Hence our Qpinioh is
CQualifled in respect of above.

sarvome Houslng Private Limited

{i} Hon'able Supreme Court of India had directad the Forensic audlt of the company
if the case of Amrapall Group.,

(1] Hon'able Supreme Court has ralsed recoveries from that Sureka Group
companies in the Amrapali case. However the matter 13 still subjudica, The
company has advanced a sum of Bs. 15 Crore bo one of the group companies

of Amrapali. A= such, we are unabie t termine the liatllity a5 on date on the
Campany in respect of this case. ﬁ{?}k
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Elhariji Developers Private Limited
CHrection by Hon'"able Supreme Court of Indla for Forenslc Audit on the Company

The Hon'ble Supreme Court of India i the case of BIKRAM CHATTERII & ORS,
fPetitionan(s]) vs. UNION OF INDLIA & ORS, (Respondent{s)) {Writ Petitian{s}-{ Clvil)
Nofe). 402017} popularly known as Amrapali Tase has directed the Forensic Audlt
of the Company vide its order dated September 08, 20158 and further re-directed at
subsequent dates.

Further the abowve matker is taken by the court on May 16, 201% and directed ko all
the directors to repart to the offlce of the forensic auditor along with the documents
required by the auditer for Further investigation. As on date the forencic auditers have
not submitted any adverse comments in respect of the Company.

Howeawar, the Hon'able Supreme Court of Tndia vide order daked July 23, 2019 have
ra3ised liabilities on the Sureka Group Companias for Involvement In the Amrapali Casa
and the mattar |g <tlll pending bafore Hon"able Supreme Court of Thdia.

The outstanding halance from Amrapall Lelsure Walley Private Limited {entiby of
Amrapall Group] as on March 31, 2024 is Bs. 15 Crore,

Directors are of the opinlon that no liability will arise on the company in raspact of any
adverse obsarvation made by the farensic auditers as all the transaction with the
above concerns has been explainable and any further details required by any other
authority will be submitted with necessary explanation and evidence.

Raeport on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companles {Auditors Report) Crder, 2020 ("the Order®) lesued
by the Central Government of India in tarms of Section 143{11) of the Act, we glve
in the *Annexure A™ a ctatemant on the matters specified in paregraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we raport that:

a} We have sought and obtalned all the information and explanations which o the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpases of our audit.

by In our oplnlon, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company 56 far as it appears from our examination of those books, axcapt
For the matkers as stated In the EQOM paragraph.

) The Consclidated Balance Sheet, Conselidated Statement of Profit and Loss
Ineluding Other Comprehensive Income and the Consolldated Statement of Cash
Flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity Statemant and dealt
with by this Repert are in agreement with the hooks of account maintained for
the purpose of the Consolidated Financial Statements g *sﬁ
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d} In our opinlon, the aforesaid Conzclidated Finandal Statements comply with the

g}

fl

a)

Accounting Standards specifled under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7
of tha Companles (Accounts) Fules, 2014,

On the basis of tha wrliken representatinng recelved from the directors as on
March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified a3 on March 31, 2024 from being appginted as a director in terms
of Sectiagn 164(2) of the Act,

With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financlal controls over Fimaneial
reparting of the Company and the operating effactlveness of such controls, refer
to our separabe Report in “Annexura B".

With respect bto the other matters to be included In the Auditor's Fegort in
accardance with Rule 11 of the Companles (Audlt and Auditors) Puleg, 2014, in
our opinien and te the best of our iINformation and acterding to the explanations
given [0 bs:
|, The Company has disclegsed the Impact of pending litigations on its Anancial
pasitinn In ks Consolldated Financial Staterments;

ii. The Company has made provislon, as required undar the applicable law or
aceounting standards, for matenal foreceeable losses, it any, on lang-term
contracts including darlvative contracts;

ili. There has baen ne delay In ransferring amounts, required ta be transferred,
to the Investor Educadon and Protaction Fund by the Company.

iv. &) The management has represented that, t& the bect of It's knowledge and
belief, ne funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (elther from
batrowed funds or share premiom or any ether zources oF Kind of funds) by
the company o or in any other persen(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entitiez (“Intermediarles"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
wrridng or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

« whather, directly or Indlrectly lend or invest in other persons or enkities
dentifled in any manner whatsosyear by or on behalf of tHe company
{*Uitirnate Bereficiarias™] ar

» provide any guarantee, securlty or the like on behalf of the Uitimata
Beneficlaries.,

b} The managament has represented, that, to the bast of It's knowledge and
bellef, no funds have been repelved by the company from any persongs) oF
entity(izz), In¢luding Forelgn enbbes {"Funding Partizs™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company
shall:

» whether, directly or indirectly, land or Invest in other persons or entitles
identlfied in any manner whatsoever by or an behalf of the Funding

Party {"Ultimate Beneficiatles™) or m
Ty Fark



s provide any guarantee, securlty ar the llke on behalf of the Uitimate
Beneficlarlas; and

v Me dividend has been declared or paid by the Company during the year,

h} The modifications relating o the rmaintenance of accounts and other matters
conhetted therswith are as stated in the EQOM paragraph "Based on our
examinakbon which incloded test checks, the company iIs yet to implement the
Audit Trail (=dit log) feature durlng the financial year. As informed o us, the
company |5 In the process of implementing the necessary changes In |ts
accounting software and belisves that non-1mplementation of the audit trail {edit
log) Feature has no impact on the financlal statement for the year, We are unable
to comrment on the audic rail feature of the accounting software, howaver, based
an our examinaton of books of accounts on test check basis we are of the opinion
that there is ne material impact on the financial statements of the company.”

ForH I M5 & Azsaclatas
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Pegistration Mo, 022230M
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“AND E

nt Audibars”

nider ¢

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under "Report on Other Legal and Reguiatory
Eequirements’ section of gur repert of even date)

(¥i)

Im our oplnion and according to the infermation and explanatdons given to us,

fFollowing companies incorperated in Indla and Included in the consolidated financial
staterments, have unfavgurable ramarke, qualifications or advarse ramarks given
by the respective audltors In thelr reports under the Companies [Auditor's Report)

Order, 2020 [CARO):

5.Mo. [Mame of Entltles 'CIN 'Sul:-sidiarw Clause number of the
Aszoclate CARD report which Is
| qualified or is adverse
[ !:‘»ann:rrne Developers Private J70100DL2013PTC2S0612  [Subsidlary ifa), wwvii
Limited
] |Sarvome Housing Private J70101DLZ013FTCZ247095 |Subsidiary liifa), =vii |
Lirnikad | |
X ‘Saryome Infrastructure U701010LZ013FTC248288  Subsldlary |'iii{a;|, wiifa), viifb)
Frojects Pravate Limited
4 ‘Bihariji Davelopars Private  |U70102002011PTC2 14270 3ubsidiary i), xvli '
Limlred
5 WL Land and Houstig Prlvate Las2)0L00EPTC1L5652 1 IEuhrsidian.r a1, wwl i
Li rryitend
| | | = !
iE- iSI{I'_‘J Estates Private Limited WZ01010L200SFTCL3Z599  |Rssoclates L a), =wii, xwiii

ForHU M 5 B Associates
Chartarad Accountants

Firmm’s Registration Mo, 022230N
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

{Referred to In point 2(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Raguirements’ secthon of our report to tha members of Jotindra Infrastructyre
Limited of &aven data)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financlal Reporting under Clayas
£1) of sub-section 3 of Sactlon 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {"Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Jotindya
Infrazstructura Limited {'the Company’) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunctlon with our
audit of the Consolldated Finandal Statements of the Company and Its subsidiaries and its
associates For the year ended on that data,

Managemeni's Respansibllity for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directore of the Company |5 rasponsible for establishing and malntaining
imternal financlal controls based on the inkernal control over financlal reporting Criterig
astablished by the Company sonsidering the essentlal components of intemal ¢ontrol
stated In the Guidanca Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contrals Owver Finznclal Repatting
lasued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of [hdia. Thesa responsibiliies includa
the design, implementation and mamtenance of adequate intermal finandal cantrols that
ware operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficlent conduct of Its business,
the safeguarding of Its azsets, the pravention and detection of frauds and @rrors, the
accuracy and completeness of the actounting records, and the timely preparation af
reliable financial information, as required under the Companles Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Cur recponsibillty 1s to express an opinion on the internal financlal contrals over financial
reporting of the Company based on our aud|t. We conducted our audlt in accordance with
the Guidance Note an Audlt of Internal Financial Controls Ower Financlal Reporting (the
"Guidance Mote’} issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and Ehe
Standards on Audlting prescrlbed under Sectlon 143(10) of the Companles Act, 2013, ta
tha extent appllcable to an audit of intemal financial centrals. Those Standards and the
Guidance Mok require that we comply with ethleal requirements and plan and perform the
audlt ko obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemal financlal controls
over financial reporting was established and malntalned and If such controls operated
effectively In all material respacts,

Ciur audit Invalves parfonming proceduras to obkain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the Intemal Anancial controls system over financial reparting and thelr operating
effectiveness. Dur audit of interpal financlal contrnls ovar financial reporting included
abtaining an understanding of Internal Anancial conbrols over inangial reporting, assescing
the n=k that a material weakness exists, and testing and ewvalyating the design and
operating effectiveness of (Hternal control hased on the assessed risk.

The procedures selected depand on the auditar’s judgament, Including the assassment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
ercar,

We balicve that the aydit evidenoe we have obtalned, s sufficdent and approptiate to

pravide a basis for cur audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls Ey*stﬂmﬁd,,:%v
. ] FERASE

ovar financial reparting. P 5.




Meaning of Internal Financial Contrals over Flnancial Reporting

A company’s internal financial contral over Anancial reporting is 3 procese designed o
provide reaconable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Consolidated Financlal Statements for external purposes in acoordance with
gangrally agcepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial ocontrol owver
fnancial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain %0 the
maintenance of records that, in reasenable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
trancactlone and dispozltions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable
aszurance that trensactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
consolidated  financial staterments In accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that recelpts and expenditures of the company are beng made only in
accordance with authorizations of the management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding preventon or timely detection of unauthorizad
acquisitian, Luse, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financlal stetements.

Limlitatlons of Internal Financial Controls over Financlal Reporting

Bacause of the inherent limitaticns of interaal financal controls over finandal reporting,
including the posslbillty of eollusion or Improper management overrlds of controls, material
milsstatements due to error or fraud may ogcur and not be detected. Alse, projections of
any evaluakion of the internal Ananctal controls over financial repocting to fulure periads
are subject to the risk that the intemal financial control over flnanclal reporting may
become inadequate because of changes In condlilons, or that the degree of complancs
with the polides or procedures may deberiorate,

Opinlon

In our opinion, to the best of oue Information and according to the explanations glven o
Uz, the Campany, its subsidlaries and Its associates, which are companies incorporated in
India has, in all material respects, an adequate Intemal financial controls system ovar
financlal reparting and such nternal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria ecstablizhed by the respectdve Company considerng the ascential
cornponants of internal control stated in the Guidance Noke on Audit of Internal Finandal

Contrals Over Financial Reporting [zsued by the Instltute of Chartered Accountants aof
Irdia,

ForHU M 5 B Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's P.eglfrjtm-n Mo. 022230
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
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futindra Infrastruciure Limited
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Notes o Censolidated financial statements o the year ended March 31, 2024
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>> (Formerly Known as: Jotindra Steel & Tubes Ltd.)
CIN: L27104HR1970PLC005240
) 4 Registered Office-14/3 Mathura Road, Sector45, Faridabad 121010, (Haryana) India
Phone : +91-129-2477888 E-mail: jotindra@jotindra.com

Proxy Form

(FormNo.MGT-11)

(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management
and Administration Rules, 2014)

Name of the Member(s)
Registered Address:

E-mail Id:

Folio No./Client Id:

DPID:

[/We, being the member(s) of and holding shares of the above named company, here by appoint

1. Name: ..o of (Address)....c.couvvrvveveenenenienns having Email Id:........cccccoviiiiiiiinnnn
Signature:.......cooererenieneens ,

2. Name:....ocooieeiinee e of (AddAress).....ccccceenvenemeiceniecnennns having Email Id:.......cccoconiiiiiicnnn
Signature:.......oorerereeneens ,

3. Name:....oooovvernceinnneenen e, Of (Address)....ccccevuvrvcerriinisinnnnns having Email Id:.......cccoconiiiiiin
Signature:.......ooverereneeneens ,

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 54T™ Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Saturday the 28t day of September, 2024 at 12:30 Pm
at the Registered Office of the Company and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions
as are indicated below:
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[ wish my above Proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the box below:

Sl [Resolutions For Against
No.

Ordinary Business:
1. [To receive, consider and adopt the Stand-alone and Consolidated Audited Financial

Statements of the Company for the year ended on 31st March, 2024 and the Reportsof

the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, and for that purpose to consider and

pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-
2. |To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Akhil Kumar Sureka (DIN-00060206), who

retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for reappointment and for that

purpose to consider and pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-.

Special Business:

3. |To approve entering into Transactions with Related Parties and in this regard to

consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.
4. |To Ratify the appointment and remuneration of Cost Auditor of the Company and in

this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the

following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.
Signed this............. day of........... 2024

Signature of shareholder
Affix Revenue Stamp

Signature of first proxy holder  signature of second proxy holder signature of third proxy holder
Note:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered

Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2. Itis optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the “For” or “Against” column blank against
any or all of the resolutions, your proxy will been titled to vote in the manner as he/she may deem
appropriate.
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>> (Formerly Known as: Jotindra Steel & Tubes Ltd.)
CIN: L27104HR1970PLC005240
) 4 Registered Office-14/3 Mathura Road, Sector45, Faridabad 121010, (Haryana) India
Phone : +91-129-2477888 E-mail: jotindra@jotindra.com

Attendance Slip

Please fill attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall.

[ hereby record my presence at the 54t Annual General Meeting held at 14/3, Mathura Road,
Faridabad, Haryana, 121003 IN on 28th September, 2024 at 12:30 Pm.

Member’s/proxy’s Name

Member’s/proxy’s Signature No. Of Shares:

Folio No./DP Id No*./Client Id Number*

*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.

(FOR INSTRUCTION SEE AS UNDER)

NOTICE

1. Shareholders/Proxy holders are requested to bring the admission slips with them when they
come to the meeting and hand over at the gate after affixing their signatures on them.

2. Shareholders intending to require any information to be explained in the meeting are
requested to inform the company at least 7 days in advance of their intention to do so, so
that the papers relating thereto may be made available if the Chairman permits such
information tobe furnished.

3. Shareholders are requested to advise indicating their account numbers, the change in their
address, if any to the company.

4. Shareholders are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report to the venue of the AGM.
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Form No. MGT- 12

Polling Paper

[Pursuant to section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 21(1) (c) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Company: Jotindra Infrastructure Limited (Formerly Known as Jotindra Steel and Tubes
Limited).

Registered Office: 14 /3, Mathura Road, Faridabad, Haryana, 121003 IN

CIN: L27104HR1970PLC005240

BALLOTPAPER-(54% AGM)

S.No Particulars Details

1 Name of  the first — named
Shareholder(In Block Letters)

2 Postal address

3 Registered Folio No./*Client ID No.
(*applicable to investors _holding
shares in dematerialized form)

4 Class of Share Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

[ hereby exercise my vote in respect of Ordinary/Special Resolutions enumerated below by
recording my assent or dissent to the said resolutions in the following manner:

[tem [tem No. No. Of Shares held |[ assent to the I dissent
SL. No. by me resolution fromthe
resolution
ORDINARY BUSINESS
Ordinary Resolution
1 To receive, consider and adopt the Stand-

alone and Consolidated Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the year
ended on 31st March, 2024 and the Reports
of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon, and for that purpose to consider
and pass the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:-
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To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Akhil
Kumar Sureka (DIN-00060206), who
retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers
himself for reappointment and for that
purpose toconsider and pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-.

SPECIALBUSINESS(Ordinary Resolution)

To approve entering into Transactions
with Related Parties and in this regard
to considerand if thought fit, to pass
with or without modification(s) the
following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution.

To Ratify the appointment and
remuneration of Cost Auditor of the
Company and in this regard to consider
and if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification(s) the following

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.

Place:

Date:

(Signature of the shareholder)
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JOTINDRA INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

(Formerly Known as: Jotindra Steel & Tubes Ltd.)
CIN: L27104HR1970PLC005240

Registered Office-14/3 Mathura Road, Sector45, Faridabad 121010, (Haryana) India
Phone : +91-129-2477888 E-mail: jotindra@jotindra.com

Route map of Venue of 54t Annual General Meeting of the members of JOTINDRA INFRASTRUCTURE

LIMITED( Formerly Known as JOTINDRA STEEL AND TUBES LIMITED) to be held on 28.09.2024 is
attached herewith-
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	PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36 OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 AND SECRETARIAL STANDARD – 2 ISSUED BY THEINSTITUTEOFCOMPANYSECRETARIESOFINDIA(ICSI)INFORMATIONABOUTTHEDIRECTOR PROPOSED TO BE RE- APPOINTED/ APP...
	FORM NO. AOC-2
	Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

